
Page 1 of 2 

AGENDA 

Monday, October 7, 2019 at 1:30 p.m. 

Primary Location: 
County Administration Center, Board of Supervisors Chambers 

Room 1070, 501 Low Gap Road, Ukiah 
Audioconference Location: 

Caltrans District 1, 1656 Union St., Eureka 

Additional Media 
For live streaming and later viewing: 

https://www.youtube.com/, search for Mendocino County Video, or 
YouTube link at http://www.mendocinocog.org under Meetings 

The Mendocino Council of Governments (MCOG) meets as the Board of Directors of: 
Mendocino Regional Transportation Planning Agency (RTPA) and 

Mendocino County Service Authority for Freeway Emergencies (SAFE) 

NOTE: All items are considered for action unless otherwise noted. 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call
2. Convene as RTPA
3. Recess as RTPA – Reconvene as Policy Advisory Committee

PUBLIC EXPRESSION 
4. Participation is welcome in Council meetings.  Comments will be limited to three minutes per person and
not more than ten minutes per subject, so that everyone can be heard.  “Public Expression” time is limited to
matters under the Council's jurisdiction that may not have been considered by the Council previously and are
not on the agenda.  No action will be taken.  Members of the public may comment also during specific agenda
items when recognized by the Chair.

REGULAR CALENDAR 
5. Public Hearing: Adoption of Resolution #M2019-___* Approving Federal Transit

Administration (FTA) Section 5310 Grant Program Regional Priority List
6. Presentation: Gualala Downtown Streetscape Project Update and Working Group Report –

Frank Demling, Caltrans

CONSENT CALENDAR 
The following items are considered for approval in accordance with Administrative Staff, Committee, and/or 
Directors' recommendations and will be enacted by a single motion.  Items may be removed from the Consent 
Calendar for separate consideration, upon request by a Director or citizen. 

7. Approval of August 19, 2019 Minutes
8. Approval of FY 2019/20 Budget Amendment: California State of Good Repair Program –

Mendocino Transit Authority’s Ukiah Transit Center Project



MCOG Board of Directors Agenda 
October 7, 2019, Page 2 of 2 

9. Approval of Second Amendment to Fiscal Year 2019/20 Transportation Planning Overall Work
Program (OWP)

10. Award of Fiscal Auditor Engagement for MCOG and Mendocino Transit Authority Audits,
Fiscal Years 2018/19 through 2022/23

11. Appointments to Transit Productivity Committee – Senior Center Representatives

RATIFY ACTION 
12. Recess as Policy Advisory Committee – Reconvene as RTPA – Ratify Action of Policy Advisory

Committee

REPORTS 
13. Reports – Information

a. Mendocino Transit Authority
b. North Coast Railroad Authority
c. MCOG Staff - Summary of Meetings
d. MCOG Administration Staff – verbal report
e. MCOG Planning Staff – verbal report
f. MCOG Directors
g. California Association of Councils of Governments (CALCOG) Delegates

ADJOURNMENT 
14. Adjourn

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) REQUESTS 
To request disability-related modifications or accommodations for accessible locations or meeting materials in 
alternative formats (as allowed under Section 12132 of the ADA) please contact the MCOG office at (707) 463-1859, 
at least 72 hours before the meeting. 

ADDITIONS TO AGENDA 
The Brown Act, Section 54954.2, states that the Board may take action on off-agenda items when: 
a) a majority vote determines that an “emergency situation” exists as defined in Section 54956.5, or
b) a two-thirds vote of the body, or a unanimous vote of those present, determines that there is a need to take

immediate action and the need for action arose after the agenda was legally posted, or
c) the item was continued from a prior, legally posted meeting not more than five calendar days before this meeting.

CLOSED SESSION 
If agendized, MCOG may adjourn to a closed session to consider litigation or personnel matters (i.e. contractor 
agreements).  Discussion of litigation or pending litigation may be held in closed session by authority of Govt. Code 
Section 54956.9; discussion of personnel matters by authority of Govt. Code Section 54957. 

POSTED 9/30/2019 * Next Resolution Number:  M2019-09



MENDOCINO COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
STAFF REPORT 

TITLE: Public Hearing – Adoption of Resolution Approving  DATE PREPARED:  09/25/19 
FTA Section 5310 Grant Program Regional MEETING DATE:  10/07/19 
Priority List

SUBMITTED BY:   James Sookne, Program Manager 

BACKGROUND:  The FTA Section 5310 Program is a grant program intended to provide funding to 
private non-profit agencies for the purpose of providing transportation services to the elderly and disabled.  
The program provides two categories of funding—traditional 5310 funding for vehicles and equipment and 
the expanded program, which provides operating and mobility management funds.  Although the program 
typically requires a local match, the match for this application cycle is being provided by the state using toll 
credits, so no local funds will be needed for these grants if successful. 

As part of the application process, the RTPA must review and score each local application under the 
traditional 5310 program and approve a regional priority list.  The applications were due on September 6, 
and regional scores must be submitted by September 30. 

MCOG staff worked closely with the local potential applicants for the program. The Ukiah Senior Center 
was the only agency to submit a traditional application for a replacement vehicle.  In addition, Mendocino 
Transit Authority, Coastal Seniors, and Consolidated Tribal Health submitted applications for operational 
funding, however, MCOG does not score those applications. 

At this meeting, we will ask that the MCOG Board approve the project score and regional list by resolution 
(to be presented at the meeting), and authorize the director to sign any necessary documentation that will be 
required.  Following MCOG Board action, the list and scores will be forwarded to Caltrans for their 
consideration.  The state will conduct their own scoring process, and will notify MCOG of any significant 
discrepancies between state scores and regional scores.  A statewide project list is expected in January 2020. 

ACTION REQUIRED:   
1. Receive staff report and scoring results.
2. Open public hearing.  (Note:  this public hearing does not require a legal notice – only an opportunity to allow

public input, per grant requirements.)
3. Receive public comments.
4. Close public hearing.
5. Action by MCOG—adoption of resolution.

ALTERNATIVES:   
None identified. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Adopt the resolution approving the project score, authorize the executive director to sign the required 
documentation, and authorize staff to forward the executed resolution and required documents to Caltrans 
for further processing. 

Agenda # 5
Regular Calendar

MCOG Meeting
10/07/2019





Page 1 of 2 

BOARD of DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION No. M2019-___ 

APPROVING FTA SECTION 5310 GRANT PROGRAM 
REGIONAL APPLICATION SCORING & PRIORITY LIST 

WHEREAS, 

 The Mendocino Council of Governments (MCOG) is the designated Regional Transportation
Planning Agency for Mendocino County;

 In accordance with FTA Section 5310 “Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with
Disabilities” program requirements, MCOG has the option of convening a Regional
Evaluation Committee or utilizing MCOG staff to review and rank FTA Section 5310
Traditional Program grant applications received for Mendocino County;

 MCOG staff has reviewed and scored the FTA Section 5310 Traditional Program grant
application received by MCOG as follows:

Applicant Project Amount Score 
Ukiah Senior Center Minivan – 5 AP (replacement) $56,000 85 

 MCOG is required to certify, by resolution, that the FTA Section 5310 projects
recommended for funding are consistent with the Regional Transportation Plan and included
in the Mendocino County Coordinated Public Transit - Human Services Transportation Plan;

 The Mendocino County Coordinated Public Transit - Human Services Transportation Plan,
adopted by MCOG March 2, 2015 and amended February 6, 2017, identifies Priority
Strategy 1 – Maintain the Current Level of Transportation Service, which calls for
maintenance of existing transportation services and specifically calls out vehicle replacement
as a component of this strategy;

 The grant request listed above is included in the Mendocino County Coordinated Public
Transit - Human Services Transportation Plan and part of Priority Strategies 1;

 Transit Objective 3 of the Regional Transportation Plan, adopted by MCOG February 5,
2018, states “Support transit needs of seniors, the disabled, and low income individuals”; and

 The proposed project will work to implement that objective of the Regional Transportation
Plan; now therefore, be it

RESOLVED, THAT: 



Resolution No. M2019-__ 
Page 2 of 2 

The Mendocino Council of Governments hereby (1) accepts and ratifies the above scores and 
adopts the FTA Section 5310 Regional Priority List; and (2) finds that the projects are included 
in strategies from the adopted Mendocino County Coordinated Public Transit - Human Services 
Transportation Plan, and consistent with objectives of the Regional Transportation Plan. 

ADOPTION OF THIS RESOLUTION was moved by Director ______________, seconded by 
Director _______, and approved on this 7th day of October, 2019, by the following roll call vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAINING: 
ABSENT: 

WHEREUPON, the Chairman declared the resolution adopted, AND SO ORDERED. 

_____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
ATTEST: Nephele Barrett, Executive Director Dan Gjerde, Chair 



F
O

R
M

 1
 

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 1
 

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 2
 

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 3
 

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 4
 

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 

A
P

P
L

IC
A

N
T

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 
T

Y
P

E
 

V
IN

 
Q

T
Y

 
S

C
O

R
E

 
S

C
O

R
E

 
S

C
O

R
E

 
S

C
O

R
E

 
S

C
O

R
E

 

 U
ki

ah
 S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

r 
M

in
iv

an
 5

 A
P

 
R

 
44

14
9 

1
32

18
20

15
85

 



F
O

R
M

 1
 

C
ol

um
n 

C
:  

 
R

 =
   

  R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t V
eh

ic
le

 
SE

 =
   

Se
rv

ic
e 

E
xp

an
si

on
 V

eh
ic

le
 

O
E

 =
  O

th
er

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t (

no
n-

ve
hi

cl
e 

re
qu

es
ts

) 

C
ol

um
n 

D
:  

 
Fo

r 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t p
ro

je
ct

s,
 e

nt
er

 th
e 

la
st

 fi
ve

 d
ig

it
s 

of
 th

e 
V

eh
ic

le
 Id

en
ti

fi
ca

ti
on

 N
um

be
r 

(V
IN

) o
f t

he
 v

eh
ic

le
 th

at
 

is
 b

ei
ng

 r
ep

la
ce

d
. 

C
ol

um
n 

E
: 

Fo
r 

no
n-

ve
hi

cl
e 

(O
th

er
), 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 e
nt

er
 th

e 
qu

an
ti

ty
 (Q

T
Y

) o
f e

ac
h 

ki
nd

 o
f e

qu
ip

m
en

t t
ha

t i
s 

be
in

g 
sc

or
ed

 
in

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t. 

C
ol

um
ns

 F
 - 

K
: 

E
nt

er
 th

e 
sc

or
es

 a
s 

sh
ow

n 
on

 P
A

G
E

 1
1 

O
F 

11
, o

f t
he

 Q
U

A
N

T
IT

A
T

IV
E

 S
C

O
R

IN
G

 C
R

IT
E

R
IA

 A
N

D
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
 

R
A

T
IN

G
 F

O
R

M
. 

A
B

 
C

 
D

 
E

 
F

G
H

I
J

K

A
PP

L
IC

A
N

T
 

PR
O

JE
C

T
 

T
Y

PE
 

V
IN

 
Q

T
Y

 
SE

C
T

IO
N

 1
 

SC
O

R
E

 
SE

C
T

IO
N

 2
 

SC
O

R
E

 
SE

C
T

IO
N

 3
 

SC
O

R
E

 
SE

C
T

IO
N

 4
 

SC
O

R
E

 
SE

C
T

IO
N

 5
 

SC
O

R
E

 
PR

O
JE

C
T

 
SC

O
R

E
 

A
ge

nc
y 

O
ne

 
Sm

al
l B

us
 

M
ob

ile
 R

ad
io

  
R

 
12

34
5 

20
7

30
30

10
97

 

A
ge

nc
y 

T
w

o 
M

in
iv

an
 

SE
 

20
9

28
28

10
95

 

A
ge

nc
y 

T
hr

ee
 

C
om

pu
te

r 
Sy

st
em

 
O

E
 

1 
15

9
25

30
10

89
 

A
ge

nc
y 

Fo
ur

 
Si

ng
le

 W
he

el
 

C
ut

-A
-W

ay
 

M
ob

ile
 R

ad
io

 
R

 
67

89
1 

19
8

27
28

5
87

 

A
ge

nc
y 

Fo
ur

 
Si

ng
le

 W
he

el
 

C
ut

-A
-W

ay
 

M
ob

ile
 R

ad
io

R
 

11
12

1 
18

8
27

28
5

86
 

A
ge

nc
y 

Fi
ve

 
B

as
e 

St
at

io
n 

M
ob

il 
R

ad
io

s 
O

E
 

 
1 5  

13
8

24
28

10
83

 

A
ge

nc
y 

Si
x 

M
ed

. B
us

 
R

 
31

41
5 

20
6

27
24

0
77

 



MENDOCINO COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
STAFF REPORT 

TITLE: Gualala Downtown Streetscape Project -  DATE PREPARED:  09/27/19 
Presentation & Discussion MEETING DATE: 10/07/19 

SUBMITTED BY:   Nephele Barrett, Executive Director 

BACKGROUND:   
MCOG has been involved in planning efforts in the Gualala area for many years, starting with the 
Gualala Community Action Plan in 2007 and ending with the which Refined Streetscape Design 
Plan, which was adopted by MCOG in 2012.   The project concept identified in these plans, which 
were developed with extensive community and stakeholder input, included two 11-foot travel lanes, 
a 12-foot center turn lane, bicycle lanes, 8 foot sidewalks on either side of the highway, additional 
crosswalks, and removal of on-street parking.  At a public meeting in 2012, 17 people indicated 
support for the proposed project, 3 expressed no opinion and 1 person expressed opposition.      

As a result of these planning efforts, MCOG programmed STIP funding in the 2014 RTIP to begin 
the environmental component of the project with Caltrans as the implementing agency.  Funds for 
design were then programmed in the 2018 STIP, for a total of $915,000.  Caltrans is nearing the end 
of the environmental component and will soon be ready to proceed with further components of the 
project.  We anticipate a request for funding in the 2020 RTIP. 

In April of this year, the MCOG Board had the opportunity to tour the Gualala area and receive 
information on the project.  In August, Caltrans released the draft environmental document for the 
project, which included two alternatives.  The release of the DED sparked a flurry of activity in the 
Gualala community regarding the project.  The primary points on which community members 
disagree include removal of on-street parking and a center two-way left turn lane.  In response to 
this activity, a working group of community stakeholders and agency representatives was formed to 
discuss the key points of disagreement in the community and try to arrive at an alternative that 
would be supported.   

As of the writing of this report, the working group has met twice.  At the most recent working 
group meeting, the group reached unanimous consensus to proceed with a project that would 
provide 6’ sidewalks, parking on both sides of the highway, bikelanes on both sides, and two travel 
lanes, for a right of way of 64 feet.  This would minimize the immediate impact to on-street parking 
and provide safety and operational improvements.  If, in the future, safety concerns made it 
necessary to add a center two-way left turn lane, parking could be eliminated on one side of the 
highway, and the turn lane could be added by restriping.   

A public meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, October 1 to allow members of the public to provide 
further input on the project and the outcome of the working group meetings.  It is hoped that the 
forward momentum gained by the working group will carry forward to the public meeting.   

The purpose of the presentation and discussion at this MCOG meeting will be to provide Board 
members with background of the project and details of the current efforts.  Caltrans Project 
Manager Frank Demling will be present to provide information and answer Board member 
questions.  We anticipate that members of the Gualala community will also be in attendance to 
provide comment. 

Agenda # 6
Regular Calendar

MCOG Meeting
10/07/2019



2 

ACTION REQUIRED:  Receive the presentation and public comment, and discuss the Gualala 
Downtown Streetscape Project. 

ALTERNATIVES:  None identified. 

RECOMMENDATION:   Receive the presentation and public comment, and discuss the Gualala 
Downtown Streetscape Project.   



September 30, 2019 

To:  MCOG Board of Directors 
From: Janet Orth, Deputy Director / CFO 
Subject: Consent Calendar of October 7, 2019 

The following agenda items are recommended for approval/action. 

7. Approval of August 19, 2019 Minutes – attached

8. Approval of FY 2019/20 Budget Amendment: California State of Good Repair
Program – Mendocino Transit Authority’s Ukiah Transit Center Project – This is a
clean-up amendment to document MCOG’s approval of Mendocino Transit Authority’s proposed
project for California State of Good Repair (SGR) program funding on August 19, 2019. The first
three years of SGR funds were approved by MCOG for MTA’s project, totaling $388,597. Changes
to the budget are shown in yellow highlights.

- Staff report and amended summary tables are attached.

9. Approval of Second Amendment to Fiscal Year 2019/20 Transportation Planning
Overall Work Program (OWP) – This routine amendment would carry over to FY 2019/20
and reprogram unexpended state Rural Planning Assistance (RPA) funds as approved by Caltrans,
as well as Local Transportation Funds, among Work Elements 1, 3, 4, 7, 13, 14 and 20. Total OWP
funding would increase from $1,064,430 to $1,133,141 (increase of $68,711).

- Staff report and amended funding tables are attached.

10. Award of Fiscal Auditor Engagement for MCOG and Mendocino Transit Authority
Audits, Fiscal Years 2018/19 through 2022/23 – There was one response to the Request
for Proposals, from MCOG’s long-time previous auditor. Staff recommends award of the fiscal audit
engagement contract for the year ended June 30, 2019 to R.J. Ricciardi, Inc., Certified Public
Accountants and to authorize MCOG’s Executive Director to execute annual agreements for up to
a total of five years in accordance with national best practices. The budget is $25,000 of local
funds. The proposed cost is $12,000 for MCOG’s audit and $13,000 for MTA’s, with the total
estimate dropping slightly in the fourth and fifth years.

- Staff report attached.

11. Appointments to Transit Productivity Committee – Senior Center Representatives
The five participating centers self-select their representatives. Nominated for formal appointment
by the Council are Diana Clarke, Executive Director of Ukiah Senior Center as the voting member
and Richard Baker, Director of Willits Harrah Senior Center, as the alternate.

- Staff report attached.





MENDOCINO COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
MINUTES 

Monday, August 19, 2019 
County Administration Center, Board of Supervisors Chambers 

ADDITIONAL AUDIOCONFERENCE LOCATION: 
Caltrans District 1, 1656 Union St., Eureka 

ADDITIONAL MEDIA: 
Find YouTube link at http://www.mendocinocog.org under Meetings 

or search Mendocino County Video at www.youtube.com 

The Mendocino Council of Governments (MCOG) meets as the Board of Directors of: 
Mendocino Regional Transportation Planning Agency (RTPA) and 

Mendocino County Service Authority for Freeway Emergencies (SAFE) 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call. The meeting was called to order at 1:37 p.m. with Directors Kevin
Tucker, Alternate (Caltrans/PAC), Jim Brown, Richey Wasserman, Larry Stranske, John Haschak,
and Michael Carter present; Vice Chair Carter presiding. Director Tess Albin-Smith was absent.

Staff present: Nephele Barrett, Executive Director; Janet Orth, Deputy Director/CFO; Loretta Ellard, 
Deputy Planner; Monica Galliani, Administrative Assistant; and James Sookne, Program Manager. 
Ms. Galliani was introduced as a new employee.  

2. Convene as RTPA

3. Recess as RTPA - Reconvene as Policy Advisory Committee.

Public Expression. John Bower, a Gualala property owner, expressed concern over the Gualala 
Downtown Design Plan. He stated that the plan would limit on-street parking space in front of Surf 
Market by over 50%, which could potentially hurt business. Other local members of the public are 
also concerned and would like to work with Caltrans to make a different, modified plan. He 
expressed gratitude toward Frank Demling, the Caltrans project manager, for seeking solutions. Mr. 
Bower also expressed a need for financial support for maintenance of his privately owned airport. 
  George Provencher, property owner and resident of Gualala, also expressed concern over the 
Gualala streetscape. He stated that the rise in tourism is increasing the need for parking. There has 
been a petition calling for adjustments to the Downtown Design Plan. Caltrans has been flexible and 
considerate toward public input.  

 Ms. Barrett stated that she would like to agendize the topic of the Gualala streetscape for the 
next meeting.  

5 - 8.  Regular Calendar. 

5. Presentation: Introduction to the California Public Utilities Commission – CPUC Local
Government Liaison. Ms. Orth introduced Naveed Paydar, Ph.D., Local Government Liaison. In a
slide presentation, he provided a history of the CPUC, as well as an overview of the function and
reach of the organization. The CPUC is a statewide regulatory agency that sets policy and oversees
various programs such as energy efficiency and public assistance. He emphasized the role of the
organization in the event of wildfires in California, explaining what it aims to do to help. He then
invited questions. Board discussion included:

Agenda # 7
Consent Calendar

MCOG Meeting
10/07/2019



MCOG Board of Directors Minutes 
August 19, 2019, Page 2 

• Is Pacific Gas & Electric’s power shutoff program necessary when there are other alternative
safety measures? (Wasserman) – Dr. Paydar described several approaches and stated this
program is the safest and most effective, given the limited resources available.

• Has PG&E initiated any programs to help low-income families with the power outages?
(Wasserman) – No, but it has prioritized communication with people who rely on electricity
to survive, such as people actively using oxygen tanks.

• Criticism of CPUC for allowing PG&E too much authority for the shutoffs. Has PG&E
addressed new wildfire risks coming from the private use of generators in preparation for
power shutoffs? (Haschak) – The most important measure to take to prevent these new
threats is to increase public awareness and training on how to be safe during these power
shutoffs. Discussion of public comments during the proceedings. Aging infrastructure needs
more attention.

• Has CPUC considered breaking the private utilities into smaller units in the future?
(Haschak) – That would be decided by the state legislature. Meanwhile the utilities are
regulated daily, and there is a trend toward more reliable, decentralized energy and storage
with more use of solar technologies.

• Is the shutdown procedure a matter of public record? (Wasserman) – Yes.

Vice Chair Carter thanked Dr. Paydar for the presentation. No action was taken. 

6. Adoption of Resolution Approving the Fiscal Year 2019/20 Project List for Funding in the
California State of Good Repair Program – Mendocino Transit Authority’s Ukiah Transit
Center Project. Ms. Barrett provided a background of the California State of Good Repair Program.
She stated that the guidelines had changed this year, resulting in a new reponsibility of regional
transportation agencies to approve project proposals submitted by transit operators in their
jursidictions. She explained that in previous years, Mendocino Transit Authority had submitted their
Ukiah Transit Center project for funding, and has chosen to do so again this year. For fiscal year
2019/20, the fund estimate is $131,002. Staff recommended approval of the project and asked that
the list be amended to include the previous two years of funding, for a total of $388,597. A handout
was distributed showing the proposed revisions.

Carla Meyer, MTA General Manager answered questions. A discussion ensued about where 
the project would be located; it has yet to be determined. A request for proposals is planned for later 
this year. 

Upon motion by Director Brown, second by Director Wasserman, and carried unanimously 
on roll call vote (6 Ayes – Brown, Stranske, Wasserman, Haschak, Tucker/PAC, Carter; 0 Noes; 0 
Abstaining; 2 Absent – Albin-Smith and Gjerde):  IT IS ORDERED that the following resolution is 
adopted. 

Resolution No. M2019-08 
Approving the FY 2019/20 Project List  

for the California State of Good Repair Program  
(Reso. #M2019-08 is incorporated herein by reference) 

7. Discussion: 2020 State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) Fund Estimate. Mr.
Sookne provided a summary of the STIP fund estimate for 2020. A target amount of $3,134,000 for
the Mendocino County region was estimated by the California Transportation Commission. After
MCOG’s Planning, Programming & Monitoring allocation, this amount would leave $2,899,000
available for existing projects in Mendocino County, such as the North State Street Intersection/
Interchange and Low Gap Road/North Bush Roundabout projects. He stated that there are studies
yet to be conducted regarding the statistics of these projects, so it may be too early to begin



MCOG Board of Directors Minutes 
August 19, 2019, Page 3 

programming these funds. The topic will be brought before the Technical Advisory Committee next 
week and a recommendation made for MCOG’s review at the November meeting. 

 In board discussion it was noted there had been some controversy surrounding the Low 
Gap/Bush roundabout project. Staff recommended waiting to program construction funds until the 
traffic studies are completed and options presented. No action was taken. 

8. Discussion/Direction: SB 277 (Beall/Frazier) Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation
Program – Local Partnership Program. Ms. Barrett explained that the new amendments to Senate
Bill 277 would alter the amount of money that small, rural counties receive through the State’s Local
Partnership Program. The new amendments do not state that there will be a guaranteed minimum
($100,000) of funding, which the “self-help” cities of Mendocino County have been relying on to
supplement their local sales taxes dedicated to transportation projects. She proposed to write a letter
to the California senators with her comments. Board discussion included:

 Has the League of California Cities commented on the matter? (Wasserman) – Both the
League and CALCOG have taken a neutral position because some of their members support
and others oppose it.

 Director Stranske recommended that Ms. Barrett send a letter to the Senators. He compared
the bill to the Rail Trail project, emphasizing that larger entities in other parts of the state are
able to secure more of the state funding.

Upon motion by Director Stranske, second by Director Haschak, and carried on roll call vote
(5 Ayes – Brown, Stranske, Wasserman, Haschak, Tucker/PAC, Carter; 0 Noes; 1 Abstaining – 
Tucker/PAC; 2 Absent – Albin-Smith and Gjerde):  IT IS ORDERED that the Executive Director is 
authorized to prepare and submit a comment letter on Senate Bill 277 (Beall) to the authors and 
relevant legislators, urging them to include a guaranteed minimum funding in the Local Partnership 
Program. 

9 - 12.  Consent Calendar. Upon motion by Director Brown, second by Director Stranske, and 
carried unanimously on roll call vote (6 Ayes – Brown, Stranske, Wasserman, Haschak, Tucker/PAC, 
Carter; 0 Noes; 0 Abstaining; 2 Absent – Albin-Smith and Gjerde) IT IS ORDERED that consent 
items are approved: 

9. Approval of June 3, 2019 Minutes – as written
10. Approval of May 2 and May 21, 2019 Transit Productivity Committee (TPC) Minutes

– as amended to correct name spelling
11. Approval of First Amendment to Fiscal Year 2019/20 Transportation Planning Overall

Work Program (OWP) – To reprogram unexpended prior-year planning funds, increasing total
OWP funding from $989,346 to $1,064,430, an increase of $75,084.

12. Approval of Minor Amount ($527) of Funding Share by Formula for Statewide Local
Streets & Roads Needs Assessment

13. Recess as Policy Advisory Committee - Reconvene as RTPA - Ratify Action of Policy
Advisory Committee. Upon motion by Director Brown, second by Director Stranske, and carried
unanimously on roll call vote (5 Ayes – Brown, Stranske, Wasserman, Haschak, Carter; 0 Noes; 0
Abstaining; 2 Absent – Albin-Smith and Gjerde): IT IS ORDERED that the actions taken by the
Policy Advisory Committee are ratified by the MCOG Board of Directors.



MCOG Board of Directors Minutes 
August 19, 2019, Page 4 

14. Reports - Information
a. Mendocino Transit Authority. Ms. Meyer reported that MTA applied for but did not receive a

federal Low/No Emission grant, which would have replaced the solar canopy’s transformer
with one compatible for charging electric busses, but will apply again next year. MTA also
plans to apply for Volkswagen mitigation trust funds to purchase an all-electric cutaway bus.
The route committee has been active, receiving direct input from the public. Ms. Meyer then
gave a summary of the current route adjustments, which have increased ridership. She
commented on MCOG funding MTA’s new GPS system and announced that a mobile app,
RouteShout 2.0, is now available for riders to locate busses.

b. North Coast Railroad Authority. Ms. Ellard reported on the August 14 NCRA meeting.
Among several items of interest, NCRA has been unable to get any of the $500,000 released
that was included in the Governor’s budget for the NCRA budget.  It was reported that the
agency only has enough funds to last about a month, and if funding is not released by their
September meeting, they will need to consider taking action to shut down.

Director Haschak commented as a newly appointed NCRA board member that a lack of
funding and resources has made it difficult to carry out goals of the board. A brief discussion
followed.

c. MCOG Staff - Summary of Meetings. Ms. Barrett referred to her written staff report.

d. MCOG Administration Staff
1. Ms. Barrett gave a summary of the Local Government Planning Supports Grants

Program, recently enacted in the state budget, which will fund planning related to
housing production and implementation of the Regional Housing Needs Allocation.
MCOG and the Department of Housing and Community Development will be working
on funding and guidelines in the upcoming months.

2. Miscellaneous. None.

e. MCOG Planning Staff. Ms. Ellard reported that the SB743 Vehicle Miles Travelled Regional
Baseline Study received a bid from Fehr & Peers, and MCOG worked with Caltrans to
implement sole-source procurement with this firm. MCOG will be having a kickoff meeting
in the upcoming weeks.

MCOG issued a Request for Proposals under the Mendocino County Fire Vulnerability
Assessment & Emergency Preparedness planning grant. Bids will be due September 13. The
RFP information is available on the MCOG website. Ms. Ellard added that MCOG will be
soliciting proposals from MCOG member agencies for Local Transportation Fund (LTF)
Two Percent Bicycle & Pedestrian Program grants in conjunction with the STIP cycle.

f. MCOG Directors. Director Haschak announced a walk/bike activity in Willits on Thursday,
August 29 at 5:30 p.m.

Director Stranske reported that traffic flowed remarkably well through Willits today
despite it being the first day of school. Granite did a good job on the Sherwood Road
intersection. Soon there will be opportunities to add trees and other details. As a commuter
through the area, Ms. Orth also commented on the impressive quality of the new intersection.



MCOG Board of Directors Minutes 
August 19, 2019, Page 5 

g. California Association of Councils of Governments (CALCOG) Delegates. Ms. Barrett gave
a report from the recent CALCOG Directors Association of California meeting she attended,
saying discussions centered around the draft federal “SAFE Vehicles Rule” that would
revoke California air quality regulations and impact transportation projects. These rules are
not expected to affect Mendocino County since it is in attainment of air quality standards.
[Refer to MCOG’s June 2019 Information Packet for details.] The other main topic centered
around the housing related planning grants. The next annual forum will be held in April 2020
in Riverside.

15. Adjournment.  The meeting was adjourned at 3:25 p.m.

Submitted: NEPHELE BARRETT, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

By Monica Galliani, Administrative Assistant, with Janet Orth, Deputy Director/CFO 





Page 1 of 2 

MENDOCINO COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

STAFF REPORT 

TITLE:  Fiscal Year 2019/20 Budget Amendment: State of Good Repair Program 

SUBMITTED BY:   Janet Orth, Deputy Director/CFO   DATE: 9/24/2019 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
BACKGROUND: 
This is a clean-up amendment to document MCOG’s approval of Mendocino Transit Authority’s 
proposed project for California State of Good Repair (SGR) program funding on August 19, 2019. 

SGR funds are allocated to each region by formula. Eligible transit projects are to be approved by 
the regional entity. This is the third year of the program that was initiated with Senate Bill 1, the 
Road Repair & Accountability Act of 2017. 

Last month the Board of Directors adopted a resolution as required, approving MTA’s project list in 
time for the September 1 due date. MTA has requested all three years of SGR funds to date for its 
Ukiah Transit Center project. 

Amendment of the budget was postponed until SGR revenues for the fourth quarter of FY 2018/19 
had been received, so as to document the first two years of actuals. 

SGR funding to date: 

 FY 2019/20 State Controller’s revised estimate $131,002

 FY 2018/19 actual revenues $128,603

 FY 2017/18 actual revenues $129,578

 Total SGR funds to date $389,183

SGR funds approved by MCOG for MTA’s project total $388,597 in the list submitted to Caltrans 
(Exhibit A of MCOG’s resolution), partially based on estimates. This results in an immaterial 
difference of $586. I recommend that this budget amendment match the Caltrans submittal for 
consistency of documentation, leaving this minor difference in the fund for later allocation or 
amendment. A reconciliation can be made in the next cycle of SGR funding. 

Attached are the amended budget summary pages with the SGR revenues and allocation highlighted.  

If the Council wishes to pull this item from the Consent Calendar, staff will be prepared to answer 
any questions. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

ACTION REQUIRED: 
Approve the proposed amendment to reflect State of Good Repair program revenues and allocation. 

Agenda # 8 
Consent Calendar 
MCOG Meeting 

10/7/2019 



Page 2 of 2 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
ALTERNATIVES: 

The proposed amendment identifies figures already approved by the Council at the meeting of 
August 19, 2019, when approving Mendocino Transit Authority’s application for State of Good 
Repair funds. The updated figures are shown in the budget summary tables. 

The budget resolution allocating funds to MTA could be also revised; however since the change in 
that resolution would be minor, the resolution is meant to address Transportation Development Act 
findings, and another resolution separately documents the SGR allocation, the Council may approve 
this budget amendment by a simple action of the Council, i.e. by minute order. - Recommended 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve the FY 2019/20 RTPA Budget Amendment by adopting the revised summary pages as 
prepared by staff. 

Enclosure:  Excerpts of 2019/20 Budget summary tables (4 pages) 

NOTE: 
A limited number of print copies of the Budget are available. Amended copies will be 
available by request. The electronic version will be posted on MCOG’s website. 



S
um

m
ar

y 
P

ag
e

M
en

do
ci

no
 C

ou
nc

il 
of

 G
ov

er
nm

en
ts

9/
24

/2
01

9

ST
A

TE
Lo

ca
l

TO
TA

LS
LT

F
ST

A
C

R
F

PP
M

R
PA

G
ra

nt
s

R
ST

P
O

th
er

M
at

ch
20

19
/2

0 
LT

F
 O

ffi
ci

al
 C

ou
nt

y 
A

ud
ito

r's
 E

st
im

at
e

3,
85

2,
64

3
3,

85
2,

64
3

20
18

/1
9 

A
ud

ito
r's

 A
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d 
B

al
an

ce
16

3,
51

9
16

3,
51

9
T

ot
al

 L
oc

al
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
F

un
d 

(L
T

F
) 

E
st

im
at

e
4,

01
6,

16
2

4,
01

6,
16

2
20

18
/1

9 
A

ud
ito

r's
 A

nt
ic

ip
at

'd
 U

nr
es

tr
ic

te
d 

B
al

an
ce

 -
 R

ev
er

sa
l

-1
63

,5
19

-1
63

,5
19

R
es

er
ve

d 
LT

F
 p

rio
r-

ye
ar

 u
na

llo
ca

te
d 

re
ve

nu
es

29
,1

35
29

,1
35

C
ar

ry
ov

er
 -

 P
la

nn
in

g 
O

ve
ra

ll 
W

or
k 

P
ro

gr
am

 a
nd

 R
S

T
P

12
,8

84
76

,3
61

0
12

1,
97

7
21

1,
22

2
20

19
/2

0 
S

ta
te

 T
ra

ns
it 

A
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

- 
S

C
O

's
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
E

st
im

at
e

94
6,

17
9

94
6,

17
9

20
19

/2
0 

S
ta

te
 o

f G
oo

d 
R

ep
ai

r 
- 

S
C

O
's

 R
ev

is
ed

 E
st

im
at

e
13

1,
00

2
13

1,
00

2
S

T
A

 a
nd

 S
G

R
 -

 F
un

d 
B

al
an

ce
 A

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r 

A
llo

ca
tio

n
46

3,
95

7
In

cl
ud

es
 2

01
8/

19
 re

vi
se

d 
SC

O
 e

st
im

at
e

25
8,

18
1

C
on

si
st

s 
of

 2
 y

rs
 a

ct
ua

l r
ev

en
ue

72
2,

13
8

M
C

O
G

's
 C

ap
ita

l R
es

er
ve

 F
un

d 
- 

B
al

an
ce

 A
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
T

ra
ns

it
67

4,
84

6
67

4,
84

6
20

19
/2

0 
S

T
IP

 P
la

nn
in

g,
 P

ro
gr

am
m

in
g 

&
 M

on
ito

rin
g 

(P
P

M
)

90
,0

00
90

,0
00

20
19

/2
0 

R
ur

al
 P

la
nn

in
g 

A
ss

is
ta

nc
e

29
4,

00
0

29
4,

00
0

20
19

/2
0 

S
ta

te
 A

ct
iv

e 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
P

ro
gr

am
 (

A
T

P
) 

- 
gr

an
ts

20
0,

00
0

20
0,

00
0

20
19

/2
0 

S
ta

te
 P

la
nn

in
g 

G
ra

nt
s 

- 
aw

ar
de

d
36

8,
28

5
36

8,
28

5
R

eg
io

na
l S

ur
fa

ce
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
P

ro
gr

am
 - 

St
at

e 
Ex

ch
an

ge
 E

st
im

at
e-

pr
el

im
in

ar
y

78
0,

99
2

78
0,

99
2

LT
F 

R
es

er
ve

:
20

17
/1

8 
LT

F
 U

nr
es

tr
ic

te
d 

B
al

an
ce

 - 
au

di
te

d
37

8,
61

4
LT

F
 R

es
er

ve
 B

al
an

ce
 a

s 
of

 6
/3

0/
20

18
 - 

au
di

te
d

25
0,

01
8

Le
ss

 L
T

F
 R

es
er

ve
 A

llo
ca

te
d 

fo
r 

F
Y

 2
01

8/
19

59
,9

98
S

ub
to

ta
l

56
8,

63
4

Le
ss

 L
T

F
 R

es
er

ve
 M

in
im

um
 B

al
an

ce
 p

er
 P

ol
ic

y 
ad

op
te

d 
4/

2/
20

01
19

3,
00

0
(P

er
 p

ol
ic

y,
 R

es
er

ve
 s

ha
ll 

be
 5

%
 o

f C
ou

nt
y 

Au
di

to
r's

 e
st

im
at

e 
of

 n
ew

 re
ve

nu
e,

 to
 n

ea
re

st
 1

,0
00

.)
A

m
ou

nt
 A

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r 

A
llo

ca
tio

n 
in

 F
Y

 2
01

9/
2

0
37

5,
63

4
37

5,
63

4
TO

TA
L 

R
EV

EN
U

ES
4,

27
0,

29
6

1,
41

0,
13

6
67

4,
84

6
16

6,
36

1
29

4,
00

0
95

7,
46

8
90

2,
96

9
0

0
8,

67
6,

07
6

R
es

er
ve

d 
LT

F
 p

rio
r-

ye
ar

 u
na

llo
ca

te
d 

re
ve

nu
es

29
,1

35
29

,1
35

20
19

/2
0 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n

46
4,

06
6

90
,0

00
55

4,
06

6
2%

 B
ic

yc
le

 &
 P

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
- 

20
18

/1
9 

LT
F

 le
ss

 A
dm

in
. x

 .0
2

67
,7

72
67

,7
72

20
19

/2
0 

P
la

nn
in

g 
O

ve
ra

ll 
W

or
k 

P
ro

gr
am

 (
O

W
P

) 
- 

N
ew

 F
un

ds
14

7,
81

6
9

0,
00

0
29

4,
00

0
36

8,
28

5
0

0
   

   
   

 C
ar

ry
ov

er
 F

un
ds

 -
 S

ee
 O

W
P 

Su
m

m
ar

y
12

,8
84

76
,3

61
T

ot
al

 O
W

P
:

98
9,

34
6

To
ta

l A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n,

 B
ik

e 
&

 P
ed

., 
an

d 
Pl

an
ni

ng
72

1,
67

3
0

0
16

6,
36

1
29

4,
00

0
36

8,
28

5
90

,0
00

0
0

1,
64

0,
31

9
B

A
LA

N
C

E
 A

V
A

IL
A

B
LE

 F
O

R
 T

R
A

N
S

IT
3,

54
8,

62
3

1,
41

0,
13

6
67

4,
84

6
0

0
38

9,
18

3
0

0
0

6,
02

2,
78

8
20

19
/2

0 
M

en
do

ci
no

 T
ra

ns
it 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
C

la
i m

 - 
du

e 
Ap

ril
 1

:
M

T
A

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
2,

99
3,

12
4

94
6,

17
9

3,
93

9,
30

3
U

nm
et

 T
ra

ns
it 

N
ee

ds
0

S
en

io
r 

C
en

te
rs

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
55

5,
49

9
55

5,
49

9
C

ap
ita

l R
es

er
ve

 F
un

d 
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n

0
C

ap
ita

l P
ro

gr
am

, M
T

A
 &

 S
en

io
rs

 C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r
0

C
ap

ita
l P

ro
gr

am
, S

en
io

r 
C

en
te

rs
 C

ur
re

nt
 Y

ea
r

0
C

ap
ita

l P
ro

gr
am

, L
on

g 
T

er
m

 (
F

iv
e 

Y
ea

r 
P

la
n)

67
4,

84
6

38
8,

59
7

As
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 re

so
lu

tio
n

1,
06

3,
44

3
To

ta
l T

ra
ns

it 
A

llo
ca

tio
ns

3,
54

8,
62

3
94

6,
17

9
67

4,
84

6
38

8,
59

7
5,

55
8,

24
5

O
th

er
 A

llo
ca

tio
ns

 - 
R

ST
P 

fo
r M

C
O

G
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 F

un
d

10
0,

00
0

10
0,

00
0

O
th

er
 A

llo
ca

tio
ns

 - 
R

ST
P 

fo
r C

ou
nt

y 
& 

C
iti

es
 P

ro
je

ct
s 

by
 F

or
m

ul
a

59
0,

99
2

59
0,

99
2

O
th

er
 A

llo
ca

tio
ns

 - 
AT

P 
In

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

G
ra

nt
s 

- S
R

16
2 

C
or

rid
or

 M
ul

ti-
Pu

rp
os

e 
Tr

ai
l

20
0,

00
0

20
0,

00
0

TO
TA

L 
A

LL
O

C
A

TI
O

N
S

4,
27

0,
29

6
94

6,
17

9
67

4,
84

6
16

6,
36

1
29

4,
00

0
95

6,
88

2
78

0,
99

2
0

0
8,

08
9,

55
6

B
al

an
ce

 R
em

ai
ni

ng
 fo

r L
at

er
 A

llo
ca

tio
n

0
46

3,
95

7
0

0
0

58
6

12
1,

97
7

0
0

58
6,

52
0

A
LL

O
C

A
TI

O
N

S

Re
gi

on
al

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 A
ge

nc
y 

- F
isc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
19

/2
0 

Bu
dg

et
A

m
en

dm
en

t P
ro

po
se

d 
O

ct
ob

er
 7

, 2
01

9 
- S

ta
ff 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n

R
EV

EN
U

ES
LO

C
A

L
FE

D
ER

A
L



 F
Y 

20
18

/1
9 

Bu
dg

et
Ad

op
te

d 
FY

 2
01

9/
20

 B
ud

ge
t 

A
m

en
de

d
$ 

C
ha

ng
e

%
 C

ha
ng

e
N

O
TE

S
LO

C
A

L/
R

EG
IO

N
A

L:
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
Fu

nd
s 

(L
TF

) 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t A
ct

 (T
D

A)
 F

un
ds

LT
F 

O
ffi

ci
al

 C
ou

nt
y 

Au
di

to
r's

 E
st

im
at

e
3,

75
1,

50
8

$
 

3,
85

2,
64

3
$

  
10

1,
13

5
$ 

   
   

   
 

2.
7%

Au
di

to
r's

 A
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 U
nr

es
tri

ct
ed

 B
al

an
ce

 - 
C

ur
re

nt
 Y

ea
r

11
0,

18
8

$
 

16
3,

51
9

$
 

53
,3

31
$ 

   
   

   
   

48
.4

%
To

ta
l L

oc
al

 T
ra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
Fu

nd
 (L

TF
) E

st
im

at
e

3,
86

1,
69

6
$

 
4,

01
6,

16
2

$
 

15
4,

46
6

$ 
   

   
   

 
4.

0%
Au

di
to

r's
 A

nt
ic

ip
at

'd
 U

nr
es

tri
ct

ed
 B

al
an

ce
 - 

R
ev

er
sa

(1
10

,1
88

)
$

 
(1

63
,5

19
)

$
 

Pe
r p

ol
ic

y,
 a

ny
 e

xc
es

s 
flo

w
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

LT
F 

R
es

er
ve

LT
F 

U
na

llo
ca

te
d 

- A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

tra
ns

iti
on

 to
 C

ou
nt

y's
 a

cc
ru

al
 m

et
ho

d
29

,1
35

$
  

29
,1

35
$

  
-

$
 

0.
0%

O
ne

-ti
m

e 
fu

nd
s,

 re
pr

es
en

ts
 2

 m
on

th
s 

of
 s

al
es

 ta
x 

re
ve

nu
e

Pr
io

r Y
ea

r B
al

an
ce

 R
em

ai
ni

ng
 fo

r L
at

er
 A

llo
ca

tio
n

-
$

  
-

$
  

M
TA

 F
is

ca
l A

ud
it 

- A
m

ou
nt

 re
tu

rn
ed

 to
 M

C
O

G
, i

f a
ny

-
$

  
-

$
  

FY
 2

01
7/

18
 fi

sc
al

 a
ud

it 
ve

rif
ie

d 
fu

ll 
el

ig
ib

ilit
y 

fo
r f

un
ds

 re
ce

iv
ed

Pl
an

ni
ng

 O
ve

ra
ll 

W
or

k 
Pr

og
ra

m
 (O

W
P)

 - 
C

ar
ry

ov
er

 fr
om

 P
re

vi
ou

s 
FY

78
,2

76
$

  
12

,8
84

$
  

(6
5,

39
2)

$ 
   

   
   

  
-8

3.
5%

FY
 2

01
8/

19
 O

W
P 

as
 a

m
en

de
d 

Fe
b.

 4
, 2

01
9;

 2
01

9/
20

  c
ar

ry
ov

er
 a

s 
of

 M
ay

 2
2

To
ta

l L
oc

al
 T

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

Fu
nd

s:
3,

85
8,

91
9

$
 

3,
89

4,
66

2
$

 
35

,7
43

$ 
   

   
   

   
0.

9%
O

W
P 

ca
rry

ov
er

 is
 o

ffs
et

 b
y 

eq
ui

va
le

nt
 a

llo
ca

tio
n

LT
F 

R
es

er
ve

 F
un

ds
LT

F 
"U

nr
es

tri
ct

ed
 B

al
an

ce
" o

f U
na

llo
ca

te
d 

R
ev

en
ue

70
,8

86
$

  
37

8,
61

4
$

 
30

7,
72

8
$ 

   
   

   
 

43
4.

1%
La

st
 a

ud
ite

d 
ye

ar
, a

ct
ua

l L
TF

 re
ve

nu
e 

ex
ce

ss
/s

ho
rtf

al
l p

er
 A

ud
ito

r's
 E

st
im

at
e

LT
F 

R
es

er
ve

 F
un

d 
Ba

la
nc

e
10

8,
74

8
$

 
25

0,
01

8
$

 
14

1,
27

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

12
9.

9%
R

es
er

ve
 u

se
d 

to
 c

ov
er

 tr
an

si
t a

llo
ca

tio
n 

sh
or

tfa
lls

 a
nd

 c
la

im
s 

pe
r p

ol
ic

y
Le

ss
/P

lu
s 

C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r R
es

er
ve

 A
llo

ca
tio

n
68

,3
64

$
  

(5
9,

99
8)

$
 

(1
28

,3
62

)
$ 

   
   

   
-1

87
.8

%
Pr

io
r y

ea
r u

nr
es

tri
ct

ed
 "e

xc
es

s 
re

ve
nu

e"
 a

bo
ve

 fu
nd

 b
al

an
ce

Su
bt

ot
al

24
7,

99
8

$
 

56
8,

63
4

$
 

32
0,

63
6

$ 
   

   
   

 
12

9.
3%

Le
ss

 L
TF

 R
es

er
ve

 M
in

im
um

 B
al

an
ce

 p
er

 P
ol

ic
y 

ad
op

te
d 

4/
2/

20
0 1

(1
88

,0
00

)
$

 
(1

93
,0

00
)

$
 

(5
,0

00
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

2.
7%

Pe
r p

ol
ic

y,
 R

es
er

ve
 is

 5
%

 o
f C

ou
nt

y 
Au

di
to

r's
 e

st
. o

f n
ew

 re
ve

nu
e,

 n
ea

re
st

 1
,0

00
.

LT
F 

R
es

er
ve

 A
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r A
llo

ca
tio

n:
59

,9
98

$
  

37
5,

63
4

$
  

31
5,

63
6

$ 
   

   
   

 
52

6.
1%

Fr
om

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 p

rio
r-y

ea
r L

TF
 s

al
es

 ta
x 

re
ve

nu
es

TO
TA

L 
LT

F 
R

EV
EN

U
ES

3,
91

8,
91

7
$

 
4,

27
0,

29
6

$
  

35
1,

37
9

$ 
   

   
   

 
9.

0%
C

ap
ita

l R
es

er
ve

 F
un

ds
To

ta
l C

ap
ita

l R
es

er
ve

 F
un

d
30

0,
49

3
$

 
67

4,
84

6
$

  
37

4,
35

3
$ 

   
   

   
 

12
4.

6%
Fu

nd
 b

al
an

ce
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r t

ra
ns

it 
cl

ai
m

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
5-

Ye
ar

 C
ap

ita
l P

ro
gr

am
Lo

ca
l A

ge
nc

y 
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

-
$

  
-

$
  

In
-k

in
d 

m
at

ch
 fo

r a
ny

 p
la

nn
in

g 
gr

an
ts

To
ta

l L
oc

al
/R

eg
io

na
l R

ev
en

ue
s:

4,
21

9,
41

0
$

 
4,

94
5,

14
2

$
  

72
5,

73
2

$ 
   

   
   

 
17

.2
%

ST
A

TE
:

Pl
an

ni
ng

 P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g 
&

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
(P

PM
) F

un
ds

Pl
an

ni
ng

 O
ve

ra
ll 

W
or

k 
Pr

og
ra

m
 (O

W
P)

 - 
N

ew
 R

ev
en

ue
89

,0
00

$
  

90
,0

00
$

  
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1.
1%

Pl
an

ni
ng

 O
ve

ra
ll 

W
or

k 
Pr

og
ra

m
 (O

W
P)

 - 
C

ar
ry

ov
er

 fr
om

 P
re

vi
ou

s 
F Y

13
2,

55
2

$
 

76
,3

61
$

  
FY

 2
01

8/
19

 O
W

P 
as

 a
m

en
de

d 
Fe

b.
 4

, 2
01

9;
 2

01
9/

20
  c

ar
ry

ov
er

 a
s 

of
 M

ay
 2

2
To

ta
l P

PM
 F

un
ds

: 
22

1,
55

2
$

 
16

6,
36

1
$

  
(5

5,
19

1)
$ 

   
   

   
  

-2
4.

9%
St

at
e 

Tr
an

si
t A

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
(S

TA
) F

un
ds

TD
A 

Fu
nd

s
St

at
e 

C
on

tro
lle

r' s
 E

st
im

at
e

81
2,

61
1

$
 

94
6,

17
9

$
 

13
3,

56
8

$ 
   

   
   

 
16

.4
%

R
ev

is
ed

 2
01

8/
19

, P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

20
19

/2
0 

SC
O

 e
st

im
at

es
; i

nc
re

as
es

 d
ue

 to
 S

B1
Es

tim
at

ed
 F

un
d 

Ba
la

nc
e 

Av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r A
llo

ca
tio

n
29

1,
18

4
$

 
46

3,
95

7
$

 
17

2,
77

3
$ 

   
   

   
 

59
.3

%
To

ta
l S

ta
te

 T
ra

ns
it 

As
si

st
an

ce
 F

un
ds

:
1,

10
3,

79
5

$
 

1,
41

0,
13

6
$

  
30

6,
34

1
$ 

   
   

   
 

27
.8

%
St

at
e 

of
 G

oo
d 

R
ep

ai
r (

SG
R

) F
un

ds
13

1,
00

2
$

 
St

at
e 

C
on

tro
lle

r's
 S

G
R

 R
ev

is
ed

 E
st

im
at

e
St

at
e 

C
on

tro
lle

r's
 E

st
im

at
e

12
8,

99
5

$
 

13
1,

81
5

$
 

2,
82

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
2.

2%
N

ew
 tr

an
si

t f
un

di
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

 in
 S

en
at

e 
Bi

ll 
1

Es
tim

at
ed

 F
un

d 
Ba

la
nc

e 
Av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r A

llo
ca

tio
n

-
$

  
25

8,
18

1
$

 
C

ar
ry

ov
er

, n
o 

cl
ai

m
s 

in
 F

Y 
20

18
/1

9
To

ta
l S

ta
te

 o
f G

oo
d 

R
ep

ai
r F

un
ds

:
12

8,
99

5
$

 
38

9,
18

3
$

  
26

0,
18

8
$ 

   
   

   
 

20
1.

7%
In

cl
ud

es
 a

ct
ua

l r
ev

en
ue

s 
20

17
/1

8 
an

d 
20

18
/1

9
R

ur
al

 P
la

nn
in

g 
A

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
Fu

nd
s 

(R
PA

)
Pl

an
ni

ng
 O

ve
ra

ll 
W

or
k 

Pr
og

ra
m

 (O
W

P)
 - 

N
ew

 R
ev

en
ue

29
4,

00
0

$
 

29
4,

00
0

$
 

-
$

 
0.

0%
Pl

an
ni

ng
 O

ve
ra

ll 
W

or
k 

Pr
og

ra
m

 - 
C

ar
ry

ov
er

46
,5

82
$

  
-

$
  

To
ta

l R
PA

 F
un

ds
:

34
0,

58
2

$
 

29
4,

00
0

$
  

(4
6,

58
2)

$ 
   

   
   

  
-1

3.
7%

Pr
ep

'd
 b

y 
J.

 O
rth

 9
/2

4/
20

19
, P

ag
e 

1 
of

 3

M
EN

D
O

C
IN

O
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 O

F 
G

O
VE

R
N

M
EN

TS
FY

 2
01

9/
20

 B
U

D
G

ET
 S

U
M

M
AR

Y

Fo
r A

m
en

dm
en

t O
ct

ob
er

 7
, 2

01
9

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

l  
Fo

rm
at

R
EV

EN
U

ES



C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 A

ct
iv

e 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

Pr
og

ra
m

 (A
TP

)
AT

P 
In

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

 - 
N

ew
 R

ev
en

ue
25

1,
00

0
$

 
-

$
  

SR
-1

62
 C

or
rid

or
 M

ul
ti-

Pu
rp

os
e 

Tr
ai

l, 
Ph

.1
 &

 2
 R

ig
ht

-o
f-W

ay
; n

o 
ne

w
 $

 in
 1

9/
20

AT
P 

In
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
 - 

C
ar

ry
ov

er
42

2,
17

3
$

 
20

0,
00

0
$

 
(2

22
,1

73
)

$ 
   

   
   

-5
2.

6%
Es

t. 
fu

nd
s 

to
 c

ar
ry

 o
ve

r t
o 

ne
xt

 F
Y 

of
 3

-y
r p

ro
je

ct
-P

re
lim

. E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

an
d 

R
oW

AT
P 

N
on

-In
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
 - 

C
ar

ry
ov

er
45

5,
73

7
$

 
-

$
  

Sa
fe

 R
ou

te
s 

to
 S

ch
oo

l 3
-y

r g
ra

nt
s-

-C
ou

nt
yw

id
e 

& 
C

ov
el

o-
-c

om
pl

et
ed

 2
01

8/
19

To
ta

l A
TP

 F
un

ds
:

1,
12

8,
91

0
$

 
20

0,
00

0
$

  
C

al
tr

an
s 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
la

nn
in

g 
G

ra
nt

s
FY

 2
01

7/
18

 G
ra

nt
 P

ro
je

ct
13

7,
16

7
$

 
-

$
  

Pe
d.

 F
ac

ilit
y 

N
ee

ds
 In

ve
nt

or
y 

EF
S 

- W
E 

19
 - 

to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 F
Y 

20
18

/1
9

FY
 2

01
9/

20
 G

ra
nt

 A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

1 
- a

w
ar

de
d

-
$

  
11

9,
51

6
$

 
SB

 7
43

 V
M

T 
R

eg
io

na
l B

as
el

in
e 

St
ud

y 
- W

E 
5

FY
 2

01
9/

20
 G

ra
nt

 A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

2 
- a

w
ar

de
d

-
$

  
24

8,
76

9
$

 
M

en
do

 C
o.

 F
ire

 V
ul

ne
ra

bi
lit

y 
As

se
ss

m
en

t &
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
Pr

ep
ar

ed
ne

ss
 - 

W
E 

8
To

ta
l P

la
nn

in
g 

G
ra

nt
s:

13
7,

16
7

$
 

36
8,

28
5

$
  

23
1,

11
8

$ 
   

   
   

 
16

8.
5%

To
ta

l S
ta

te
 R

ev
en

ue
s:

3,
06

1,
00

1
$

 
2,

82
7,

96
5

$
  

(2
33

,0
36

)
$ 

   
   

   
-7

.6
%

FE
D

ER
A

L:
.

Fe
de

ra
l G

ra
nt

 P
ro

gr
am

s 
an

d 
R

eg
io

na
l A

pp
or

tio
nm

en
ts

FT
A 

Se
ct

io
n 

53
11

f I
nt

er
ci

ty
 B

us
 P

ro
gr

am
-

$
  

pe
nd

in
g

C
om

pe
tit

iv
e 

gr
an

ts
 in

cl
ud

e 
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

As
si

st
an

ce
 a

nd
 C

ap
ita

l P
ro

je
ct

s
FT

A 
Se

ct
io

n 
53

11
 P

ro
gr

am
 - 

R
eg

io
na

l A
pp

or
tio

nm
en

t
50

3,
21

0
$

 
pe

nd
in

g
An

nu
al

 a
pp

or
tio

nm
en

t t
o 

M
en

do
ci

no
 C

ou
nt

y 
fo

r t
ra

ns
it 

op
er

at
io

ns
/c

ap
ita

R
eg

io
na

l S
ur

fa
ce

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

Pr
og

ra
m

 (R
ST

P)
73

6,
86

5
$

 
78

0,
99

2
$

  
44

,1
27

$ 
   

   
   

   
6.

0%
Ac

tu
al

 re
ve

nu
e 

an
d 

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

es
tim

at
e 

- e
xc

ha
ng

ed
 fo

r S
ta

te
 fu

nd
s

R
ST

P 
C

ar
ry

ov
er

/B
al

an
ce

 A
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r L
at

er
 A

llo
ca

tio
n

11
2,

11
5

$
 

12
1,

97
7

$
 

9,
86

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
8.

8%
Pr

io
r A

dm
in

 a
llo

ca
tn

s 
fo

r R
eg

io
na

l P
ro

je
ct

 M
gr

 &
 D

ir.
 C

os
t, 

pe
r a

ud
it 

6.
30

.2
01

8
To

ta
l F

ed
er

al
 R

ev
en

ue
s:

1,
35

2,
19

0
$

 
90

2,
96

9
$

  
(4

49
,2

21
)

$ 
   

   
   

-3
3.

2%
TO

TA
L 

R
EV

EN
U

ES
8,

63
2,

60
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

8,
67

6,
07

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
43

,4
75

$ 
   

   
   

0.
5%

SG
R

 a
m

en
dm

en
t n

et
 in

cr
ea

se
 o

f $
12

7,
78

9 
(ro

un
di

ng
 e

rro
r=

1)

 F
Y 

20
18

/1
9 

Bu
dg

et
Am

en
de

d 
FY

 2
01

9/
20

 B
ud

ge
t 

Pr
op

os
ed

$ 
C

ha
ng

e
%

 C
ha

ng
e

N
O

TE
S

LO
C

A
L/

R
EG

IO
N

A
L:

Lo
ca

l T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

Fu
nd

s 
(L

TF
) 

R
es

er
ve

d 
LT

F 
Pr

io
r-Y

ea
r U

na
llo

ca
te

d 
R

ev
en

ue
s 

of
 $

59
6,

20
0

29
,1

35
$

  
29

,1
35

$
  

Ba
la

nc
e 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 a

fte
r a

llo
ca

tio
ns

 fr
om

 P
rio

r-Y
ea

r U
na

llo
ca

te
d 

R
ev

en
ue

s
Ad

m
in

is
tra

tio
n: Ad

m
in

. &
 F

is
ca

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
C

on
tra

ct
39

2,
44

4
$

 
41

0,
27

1
$

 
17

,8
27

$ 
   

   
   

   
4.

54
%

In
cl

ud
es

 C
O

LA
 o

f 2
.9

4%
 a

nd
 3

.6
9%

 p
er

 C
PI

 ra
te

s;
 c

on
tra

ct
 a

llo
w

s 
up

 to
 4

%
O

th
er

 D
ire

ct
 C

os
ts

50
,0

00
$

  
53

,7
95

$
  

3,
79

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
7.

6%
To

ta
l A

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n 

Al
lo

ca
tio

ns
:

44
2,

44
4

$
 

46
4,

06
6

$
  

21
,6

22
$ 

   
   

   
   

4.
9%

Ad
m

in
. &

 F
is

ca
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

co
nt

ra
ct

 F
Y 

20
14

/1
5 

- 2
01

8/
19

 p
lu

s 
1-

yr
 e

xt
en

si
on

Tw
o 

Pe
rc

en
t L

TF
 B

ic
yc

le
 &

 P
ed

es
tri

an
 P

ro
gr

am
 

66
,1

81
$

  
67

,7
72

$
  

1,
59

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
2.

4%
2%

 o
f L

TF
 E

st
im

at
e 

(le
ss

 A
dm

in
. a

llo
ca

tio
n)

Pl
an

ni
ng

 O
ve

ra
ll 

W
or

k 
Pr

og
ra

m
 (O

W
P)

 - 
N

ew
 F

un
ds

14
7,

81
6

$
 

14
7,

81
6

$
 

-
$

 
0.

0%
O

W
P 

C
ar

ry
ov

er
 fr

om
 P

re
vi

ou
s 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r

78
,2

76
$

  
12

,8
84

$
  

FY
 2

01
8/

19
 O

W
P 

as
 a

m
en

de
d 

Fe
b.

 4
, 2

01
9;

 2
01

9/
20

  c
ar

ry
ov

er
 a

s 
of

 M
ay

 2
2

To
ta

l A
dm

in
., 

Bi
ke

 &
 P

ed
., 

Pl
an

ni
ng

, R
es

er
ve

s:
76

3,
85

2
$

 
72

1,
67

3
$

 
(4

2,
17

9)
$ 

   
   

   
  

-5
.5

%

BA
LA

N
C

E 
AV

AI
LA

BL
E 

FO
R

 T
R

AN
SI

T
3,

15
5,

06
5

$
 

3,
54

8,
62

3
$

 
39

3,
55

8
$ 

   
   

   
 

12
.5

%

M
en

do
ci

no
 T

ra
ns

it 
Au

th
or

ity
 (M

TA
) C

la
im

:
TD

A 
Au

th
or

ity
:

M
TA

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
2,

66
1,

28
8

$
 

2,
99

3,
12

4
$

 
33

1,
83

6
$ 

   
   

   
 

12
.5

%
Pu

bl
ic

 U
til

iti
es

 C
od

e 
(P

U
C

) S
ec

. 9
92

60
a

U
nm

et
 T

ra
ns

it 
N

ee
ds

-
$

 
-

$
 

PU
C

 S
ec

tio
n 

99
26

0a

Se
ni

or
 C

en
te

rs
 O

pe
ra

tio
ns

49
3,

77
7

$
 

55
5,

49
9

$
 

61
,7

22
$ 

   
   

   
   

12
.5

%
PU

C
 S

ec
tio

n 
99

40
0c

M
TA

 C
ap

ita
l P

ro
gr

am
 - 

C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r
-

$
 

-
$

 
PU

C
 S

ec
tio

n 
99

26
0a

 fo
r R

ou
te

M
at

ch
 s

of
tw

ar
e/

ha
rd

w
ar

e 
sy

st
em

 a
cq

ui
si

tio
n

C
ap

ita
l R

es
er

ve
 F

un
d 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
n

-
$

 
-

$
 

C
A 

C
od

e 
of

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 (C
C

R
) S

ec
. 6

64
8

To
ta

l L
TF

 T
ra

ns
it 

C
la

im
:

3,
15

5,
06

5
$

 
3,

54
8,

62
3

$
 

39
3,

55
8

$ 
   

   
   

 
12

.5
%

To
ta

l L
TF

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns
:

3,
91

8,
91

7
$

 
4,

27
0,

29
6

$
 

35
1,

37
9

$ 
   

   
   

 
9.

0%

C
ap

ita
l R

es
er

ve
 F

un
ds

M
en

do
ci

no
 T

ra
ns

it 
Au

th
or

ity
 (M

TA
) C

la
im

:

C
ap

ita
l P

ro
gr

am
, M

TA
 - 

C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r
-

$
 

-
$

 
C

C
R

 S
ec

tio
n 

66
48

C
ap

ita
l P

ro
gr

am
, S

en
io

r C
en

te
rs

 - 
C

ur
re

nt
 Y

ea
r

-
$

 
-

$
 

C
C

R
 S

ec
tio

n 
66

48

C
ap

ita
l P

ro
gr

am
 - 

Lo
ng

 T
er

m
63

2,
13

8
$

 
67

4,
84

6
$

 
42

,7
08

$ 
   

   
   

   
6.

8%
C

C
R

 S
ec

tio
n 

66
31

Ad
ju

st
m

en
t f

or
 S

TA
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
(d

up
lic

at
io

n)
(3

31
,6

45
)

$
 

Pr
ep

'd
 b

y 
J.

 O
rth

 9
/2

4/
20

19
, P

ag
e 

2 
of

 3

A
LL

O
C

A
TI

O
N

S



To
ta

l C
R

F 
Al

lo
ca

tio
ns

:
30

0,
49

3
$

 
67

4,
84

6
$

 
37

4,
35

3
$ 

   
   

   
 

12
4.

6%
Pr

ep
'd

 b
y 

J.
 O

rth
 9

/2
4/

20
19

, P
ag

e 
3 

of
 3

To
ta

l L
oc

al
/R

eg
io

na
l A

llo
ca

tio
ns

:
4,

21
9,

41
0

$
 

4,
94

5,
14

2
$

  
72

5,
73

2
$ 

   
   

   
 

17
.2

%
ST

A
TE

:
Pl

an
ni

ng
 P

ro
gr

am
m

in
g 

&
 M

on
ito

rin
g 

(P
PM

) F
un

ds

Pl
an

ni
ng

 O
ve

ra
ll 

W
or

k 
Pr

og
ra

m
 (O

W
P)

 - 
N

ew
 R

ev
en

ue
89

,0
00

$
 

90
,0

00
$

 
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1.
1%

Pl
an

ni
ng

 O
ve

ra
ll 

W
or

k 
Pr

og
ra

m
 (O

W
P)

 - 
C

ar
ry

ov
er

 fr
om

 P
re

vi
ou

s 
FY

13
2,

55
2

$
 

76
,3

61
$

 
FY

 2
01

8/
19

 O
W

P 
as

 a
m

en
de

d 
Fe

b.
 4

, 2
01

9;
 2

01
9/

20
  c

ar
ry

ov
er

 a
s 

of
 M

ay
 2

2

To
ta

l P
PM

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns
: 

22
1,

55
2

$
 

16
6,

36
1

$
 

(5
5,

19
1)

$ 
   

   
   

  
-2

4.
9%

St
at

e 
Tr

an
si

t A
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

(S
TA

) F
un

ds

M
en

do
ci

no
 T

ra
ns

it 
Au

th
or

ity
 (M

TA
) C

la
im

:
TD

A 
Au

th
or

ity
:

M
TA

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
30

0,
00

0
$

 
94

6,
17

9
$

 
64

6,
17

9
$ 

   
   

   
 

21
5.

4%
C

C
R

 S
ec

tio
n 

67
30

a

C
ap

ita
l P

ro
gr

am
, M

TA
 &

 S
en

io
rs

 - 
C

ur
re

nt
 Y

ea
r

49
,0

00
$

 
-

$
 

(4
9,

00
0)

$ 
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

%
C

C
R

 S
ec

tio
n 

67
30

b

C
ap

ita
l R

es
er

ve
 F

un
d 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
n

33
1,

64
5

$
 

-
$

 
C

C
R

 S
ec

tio
n 

66
31

To
ta

l S
TA

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns
:

68
0,

64
5

$
 

94
6,

17
9

$
 

26
5,

53
4

$ 
   

   
   

 
39

.0
%

St
at

e 
of

 G
oo

d 
R

ep
ai

r (
SG

R
) F

un
ds

-
$

 
38

8,
59

7
$

 
To

ta
l S

G
R

 fu
nd

s 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 fo

r M
TA

 p
ro

je
ct

 a
s 

su
bm

itt
ed

 to
 C

al
tra

ns
 A

ug
. 2

9
R

ur
al

 P
la

nn
in

g 
A

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
Fu

nd
s 

(R
PA

)
Pl

an
ni

ng
 O

ve
ra

ll 
W

or
k 

Pr
og

ra
m

 (O
W

P)
 - 

N
ew

 R
ev

en
ue

29
4,

00
0

$
 

29
4,

00
0

$
 

-
$

 
0.

0%
Pl

an
ni

ng
 O

ve
ra

ll 
W

or
k 

Pr
og

ra
m

 (O
W

P)
 - 

C
ar

ry
ov

er
 fr

om
 P

re
vi

ou
s 

FY
46

,5
82

$
  

-
$

  
To

ta
l R

PA
 A

llo
ca

tio
ns

:
34

0,
58

2
$

 
29

4,
00

0
$

  
(4

6,
58

2)
$ 

   
   

   
  

-1
3.

7%
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 A
ct

iv
e 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
 (A

TP
)

AT
P 

In
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
 - 

N
ew

 R
ev

en
ue

25
1,

00
0

$
 

-
$

  
SR

-1
62

 C
or

rid
or

 M
ul

ti-
Pu

rp
os

e 
Tr

ai
l, 

Ph
.1

 &
 2

 R
ig

ht
-o

f-W
ay

; n
o 

ne
w

 $
 in

 1
9/

20
AT

P 
In

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

 - 
C

ar
ry

ov
er

42
2,

17
3

$
 

20
0,

00
0

$
 

(2
22

,1
73

)
$ 

   
   

   
-5

2.
6%

Es
t. 

fu
nd

s 
to

 c
ar

ry
 o

ve
r t

o 
ne

xt
 F

Y 
of

 3
-y

r p
ro

je
ct

-P
re

lim
. E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
an

d 
R

oW
AT

P 
N

on
-In

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

 - 
C

ar
ry

ov
er

45
5,

73
7

$
 

-
$

  
Sa

fe
 R

ou
te

s 
to

 S
ch

oo
l 3

-y
r g

ra
nt

s-
-C

ou
nt

yw
id

e 
& 

C
ov

el
o-

-c
om

pl
et

ed
 2

01
8/

19
To

ta
l A

TP
 A

llo
ca

tio
ns

1,
12

8,
91

0
$

 
20

0,
00

0
$

  
(9

28
,9

10
)

$ 
   

   
   

-8
2.

3%
C

al
tr

an
s 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
la

nn
in

g 
G

ra
nt

FY
 2

01
7/

18
 G

ra
nt

 P
ro

je
ct

13
7,

16
7

$
 

-
$

  
Pe

d.
 F

ac
ilit

y 
N

ee
ds

 In
ve

nt
or

y 
EF

S 
- W

E 
19

 - 
to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 F

Y 
20

18
/1

9
FY

 2
01

9/
20

 G
ra

nt
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
1 

- a
w

ar
de

d
-

$
  

11
9,

51
6

$
 

SB
 7

43
 V

M
T 

R
eg

io
na

l B
as

el
in

e 
St

ud
y 

- W
E 

5
FY

 2
01

9/
20

 G
ra

nt
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
2 

- a
w

ar
de

d
-

$
  

24
8,

76
9

$
 

M
en

do
 C

o.
 F

ire
 V

ul
ne

ra
bi

lit
y 

As
se

ss
m

en
t &

 E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

Pr
ep

ar
ed

ne
ss

 - 
W

E 
8

To
ta

l P
la

nn
in

g 
G

ra
nt

s:
13

7,
16

7
$

 
36

8,
28

5
$

  
23

1,
11

8
$ 

   
   

   
 

16
8.

5%
To

ta
l S

ta
te

 F
un

ds
 A

llo
ca

tio
ns

:
2,

50
8,

85
6

$
 

2,
36

3,
42

2
$

  
(1

45
,4

34
)

$ 
   

   
   

-5
.8

%
FE

D
ER

A
L:

Fe
de

ra
l G

ra
nt

 P
ro

gr
am

s 
an

d 
R

eg
io

na
l A

pp
or

tio
nm

en
ts

FT
A 

Se
ct

io
n 

53
11

f I
nt

er
ci

ty
 B

us
 P

ro
gr

am
-

$
  

pe
nd

in
g

M
TA

 h
as

 a
pp

lie
d 

fo
r $

30
0,

00
0 

to
 c

on
tin

ue
 R

ou
te

 6
5 

se
rv

ic
e

FT
A 

Se
ct

io
n 

53
11

 P
ro

gr
am

 - 
R

eg
io

na
l A

pp
or

tio
nm

en
t:

50
3,

21
0

$
 

pe
nd

in
g

M
TA

 is
 e

lig
ib

le
, M

C
O

G
 a

pp
ro

ve
s 

pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g
R

eg
io

na
l S

ur
fa

ce
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
 (R

ST
P)

R
ST

P 
bu

dg
et

 a
llo

ca
tio

ns
 a

re
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

es
tim

at
es

M
C

O
G

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 F
un

di
ng

 P
ro

gr
am

10
0,

00
0

$
 

10
0,

00
0

$
 

-
$

 
0.

0%
R

eg
io

na
l c

ap
ita

l p
ro

je
ct

 fu
nd

s 
"o

ff 
th

e 
to

p"
Lo

ca
l A

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
- P

ro
je

ct
 D

el
iv

er
y 

- A
dm

in
is

tra
tio

n
90

,0
00

$
  

90
,0

00
$

  
-

$
 

0.
0%

St
af

f -
 R

eg
io

na
l P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

er
 u

nd
er

 A
dm

in
. C

on
tra

ct
 a

nd
 d

ire
ct

 c
os

ts
Fo

rm
ul

a 
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
to

 M
C

O
G

 M
em

be
r A

ge
nc

ie
s:

M
en

do
ci

no
 C

ou
nt

y 
D

ep
t. 

of
 T

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n

12
1,

37
0

$
 

12
7,

22
9

$
 

5,
85

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
4.

8%
C

ity
 o

f U
ki

ah
16

3,
33

7
$

 
17

1,
22

2
$

 
7,

88
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

4.
8%

C
ity

 o
f F

or
t B

ra
gg

10
9,

05
7

$
 

11
4,

32
1

$
 

5,
26

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
4.

8%
C

ity
 o

f W
illi

ts
10

2,
35

9
$

 
10

7,
30

1
$

 
4,

94
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

4.
8%

C
ity

 o
f P

oi
nt

 A
re

na
67

,6
53

$
  

70
,9

19
$

  
3,

26
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

4.
8%

To
ta

l R
ST

P 
Fo

rm
ul

a 
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n
56

3,
77

6
$

 
59

0,
99

2
$

 
27

,2
16

$ 
   

   
   

   
4.

8%
20

18
/1

9 
ac

tu
al

 p
er

 S
ta

te
 e

xc
ha

ng
e 

ag
re

em
en

t r
ec

'vd
 4

.9
.2

01
9.

 R
ou

nd
 e

rro
r <

1>
To

ta
l R

ST
P 

Al
lo

ca
tio

ns
:

75
3,

77
6

$
 

78
0,

99
2

$
  

27
,2

16
$ 

   
   

   
   

3.
6%

Fo
rm

ul
a 

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
by

 p
ol

ic
y,

 d
is

tri
bu

tio
n 

pe
nd

in
g 

St
at

e 
pr

oc
es

si
ng

 o
f f

un
ds

To
ta

l F
ed

er
al

 F
un

ds
 A

llo
ca

tio
ns

:
1,

25
6,

98
6

$
 

78
0,

99
2

$
  

(4
75

,9
94

)
$ 

   
   

   
-3

7.
9%

To
ta

l T
ra

ns
it 

A
llo

ca
tio

ns
4,

63
9,

41
3

$
 

5,
55

8,
24

5
$

  
91

8,
83

2
$ 

   
   

   
 

19
.8

%
20

18
/1

9 
in

cl
ud

es
 F

TA
 S

ec
tio

n 
53

11
 fu

nd
s

To
ta

l O
ve

ra
ll 

W
or

k 
Pr

og
ra

m
 (O

W
P)

1,
38

1,
13

0
$

 
98

9,
34

6
$

  
(3

91
,7

84
)

$ 
   

   
   

-2
8.

4%
FY

 2
01

8/
19

 O
W

P 
as

 a
m

en
de

d 
Fe

b.
 4

, 2
01

9;
 2

01
9/

20
  c

ar
ry

ov
er

 a
s 

of
 M

ay
 2

2
TO

TA
L 

A
LL

O
C

A
TI

O
N

S
7,

98
5,

25
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

8,
08

9,
55

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
10

4,
30

4
$ 

   
   

 
1%

FY
 2

01
8/

19
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

in
 O

W
P 

an
d 

R
ST

P 
af

te
r J

un
e 

bu
dg

et
 a

do
pt

io
n

B
al

an
ce

 R
em

ai
ni

ng
 fo

r L
at

er
 A

llo
ca

tio
n/

D
iff

er
en

ce
 o

f A
ct

ua
ls

64
7,

34
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
58

6,
52

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

(6
0,

82
9)

$ 
   

   
  

-9
%

Tr
an

si
t (

ST
A,

 S
G

R
) a

nd
 R

ST
P



Page 1 of 2 

MENDOCINO COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

STAFF REPORT 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
TITLE:   Second Amendment to FY 2019/20 Overall Work Program   DATE PREPARED:  9/30/19 

SUBMITTED BY: Alexis Pedrotti, Program Coordinator                 MEETING DATE: 10/7/19 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
BACKGROUND:   

The Final FY 2019/20 Overall Work Program (totaling $989,346) was adopted by MCOG on June 3, 2019. 
Shortly following the adoption of the final, staff presented the First Amendment (August 19, 2019) for review and 
approval. The First Amendment was to carry over and reprogram some unexpended Planning, Programming & 
Monitoring (PPM) funds, some of which expire 6/30/20.   

In August, it was reported that staff would return with a Second Amendment to carry over the unexpended Rural 
Planning Assistance (RPA) funds, once receiving approval from Caltrans. Caltrans has approved the FY 2018/19 
Certification of Expenditures; therefore, staff can now proceed programming the unexpended RPA carryover as 
part of the Second Amendment. The unexpended RPA carryover ($28,314) and a small amount of Local 
Transportation Funds ($40,397) will be programmed as part of the Second Amendment.  

The purpose of this proposed Second Amendment is to carry over and reprogram RPA and LTF funds as follows: 

W.E.1 (MCOG) Regional Government & Intergovernmental Coordination – A small amount of RPA 
Carryover Funding ($1,252) has been added to this work element. There were four elements (W.E. 1 = $426 + W.E. 
16 = $2 + W.E. 17 = $792 + W.E. 19 = $32) with smaller amounts of RPA funding remaining at the close of FY 
2018/19. For easier tracking purposes staff has combined all remaining totals in Work Element 1.   

W.E. 3 (MCOG) Community Transportation Planning – A total of $7,821 in carryover LTF funds is being 
carried over and added to this work element, increasing the total from $250 to $8,071 in LTF Funding.   

W.E. 4 (MCOG) Sustainable Transportation Planning – A budget of $10,500 of RPA Funding was 
originally approved for this element in the Final, $2,160 of unexpended RPA has been carried over and added to 
increase the total to $12,660 in this amendment.   

W.E. 7 (MCOG) Planning, Programming & Monitoring – A total of $20,069 in carryover RPA funds is 
being carried over and added to this work element, increasing the total RPA from $50,087 to $70,156.   

 W.E. 13 (Co. DOT) Orchard Ave. Extension Feas. Study – Grant Match – Staff included an estimated 
amount of carryover ($7,608) in LTF in the Final OWP, this adjustment is to reflect the actual amount of LTF 
Carryover totaling $9,436.   

W.E. 14 (MCOG) Training – The training element typically has carryover funding that rolls over into the 
new fiscal year that will be utilized by MCOG Staff, Local Agencies and various direct expenses. A total LTF 
Carryover ($22,770) being added to this element brings the training element total to $44,270.   

W.E. 20 (MCOG) Grant Development & Assistance – A total of $12,811 ($7,978 - LTF & $4,833 - RPA) 
has been carried over and added to this work element for MCOG Staff, brining the total work element to $36,726.  

This proposed amendment would increase the FY 2019/20 Overall Work Program total from $1,064,430 to 
$1,133,141, an increase of $68,711 ($28,314 RPA + $40,397 LTF).  Details are shown in bold and strike out on the 
attached financial summary sheets.  Copies of the full amendment will be available upon request.   

Agenda # 9 
Consent Calendar 
MCOG Meeting 

10/07/2019



Page 2 of 2 

The TAC has not considered this proposed Amendment because their September meeting was canceled. 
However, staff considers the amendment routine and no new funding is involved.   
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
ACTION REQUIRED:  Consider approval of Second Amendment to FY 2019/20 Overall Work Program.  
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
ALTERNATIVES: (1) Approve Amendment (Recommended); (2) Do not approve Amendment; or  
(3) Refer Amendment to TAC for review and recommendation.
__________________________________________________________________________________
RECOMMENDATION:   Accept staff’s recommendation to approve the Second Amendment to FY 2019/20
Overall Work Program (OWP) and authorize Executive Director to sign appropriate certifications and revised OWP
Agreement (as needed), and forward to Caltrans as required.

/ajp 
Attachments:  FY 2019/20 OWP - Summary of Funding Sources 

 FY 2019/20 OWP – Funding Allocation & Expenditure Summary 
 FY 2019/20 OWP - Summary of Carryover Funds 



L
O

C
A

L
S

T
A

T
E

S
T

A
T

E
S

T
A

T
E

S
T

A
T

E
T

O
T

A
L

N
O

.
W

O
R

K
 E

L
E

M
E

N
T

L
T

F
P

P
M

R
P

A
S

B
 1

 S
u

st
. 

C
om

m
. 

G
ra

n
t

S
B

 1
 

A
d

a p
ta

ti
on

 
G

ra
n

t
1

M
C

O
G

 -
 R

eg
io

n
al

 G
ov

er
n

m
en

t 
&

 I
n

te
rg

ov
er

n
m

en
ta

l C
oo

rd
in

at
io

n
$2

50
 

$1
13

,2
48

$1
13

,4
98

$1
14

,5
00

$1
14

,7
50

2
M

C
O

G
 -

 P
la

nn
in

g 
M

an
ag

em
en

t &
 G

en
er

al
 C

oo
rd

in
at

io
n 

(N
on

-R
P

A
)

$8
2,

27
6

$1
2,

72
3

 
$9

4,
99

9
3

M
C

O
G

 -
 C

om
m

u
n

it
y 

T
ra

n
sp

or
ta

ti
on

 P
la

n
n

in
g

$2
50

$1
0,

50
0

 
$1

0,
75

0
$8

,0
71

$1
8,

57
1

4
M

C
O

G
 -

 S
u

st
ai

n
ab

le
 T

ra
n

sp
or

ta
ti

on
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 

 
$1

0,
50

0
$1

0,
50

0
$1

2,
66

0
$1

2,
66

0
5

M
C

O
G

 -
 S

B
 7

43
 V

M
T

 R
eg

io
na

l B
as

el
in

e 
S

tu
dy

 -
 G

ra
nt

 A
w

ar
de

d
$1

5,
48

5
$1

19
,5

16
$1

35
,0

01
6

C
o.

 D
O

T
 -

 C
om

bi
ne

d 
S

pe
ci

al
 S

tu
di

es
 

 
$6

0,
00

0
$6

0,
00

0
7

M
C

O
G

 -
 P

la
n

n
in

g,
 P

ro
gr

am
m

in
g 

&
 M

on
it

or
in

g
 

$7
7,

29
7

$5
0,

08
7

$1
27

,3
84

$7
0,

15
6

$1
47

,4
53

8
M

C
O

G
 -

 M
en

do
. C

o.
 F

ir
e 

V
ul

ne
ra

bi
li

ty
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t &
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
P

re
pa

re
dn

es
s 

- 
G

ra
nt

 A
w

ar
de

d 
(2

-y
ea

r 
pr

oj
ec

t)
$3

2,
11

6
$2

47
,8

84
$2

80
,0

00
12

U
ki

ah
 -

 C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 A

D
A

 A
cc

es
s 

P
la

n 
U

pd
at

e 
- C

ar
ry

ov
er

 
$3

5,
00

0
$3

5,
00

0
13

C
o.

 D
O

T
 -

 O
rc

h
ar

d
 A

ve
. E

xt
en

si
on

 F
ea

s.
 S

tu
d

y 
- 

G
ra

n
t 

M
at

ch
 -

 
$7

,6
08

$7
,6

08
$9

,4
36

$9
,4

36
14

M
C

O
G

 -
 T

ra
in

in
g

$2
1,

50
0

 
 

$2
1,

50
0

$4
4,

27
0

$4
4,

27
0

15
F

or
t B

ra
gg

 -
 T

ra
ns

p.
 P

la
nn

in
g 

fo
r 

M
il

l S
it

e 
R

eu
se

 &
 R

ez
on

in
g 

- C
ar

ry
ov

er
 

$4
1,

36
1

$4
1,

36
1

16
M

C
O

G
 -

 M
ul

ti
-M

od
al

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

P
la

nn
in

g
 

 
$3

1,
50

0
$3

1,
50

0
18

M
C

O
G

 -
 G

eo
gr

ap
hi

c 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
S

ys
te

m
 (

G
IS

) 
A

ct
iv

it
ie

s
$6

00
$5

,2
50

 
$5

,8
50

20
M

C
O

G
 -

 G
ra

n
t 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
&

 A
ss

is
ta

n
ce

   
$5

00
 

$2
3,

41
5

$2
3,

91
5

$8
,4

78
$2

8,
24

8
$3

6,
72

6
P

av
em

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
ro

gr
am

 (
P

M
P

) 
T

ri
en

ni
al

 U
pd

at
e 

- 
R

E
SE

R
V

E
$6

5,
56

4
$6

5,
56

4

T
O

T
A

L
 

$1
60

,5
85

$2
42

,4
45

$5
19

,5
64

$1
19

,5
16

$2
47

,8
84

$1
,0

64
,4

30

$2
00

,9
82

$3
22

,3
14

$1
,1

33
,1

41
 

 
 

 

T
O

T
A

L
 W

O
R

K
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 

 

L
oc

al
 

$1
60

,5
85

 
$1

47
,7

01
 

$2
00

,9
82

 
$1

2,
88

4
 

S
ta

te
$9

03
,8

45
$5

3,
28

1
$9

32
,1

59
$9

0,
00

0
F

ed
er

al
$0

S
ta

te
 P

P
M

 C
ar

ry
ov

er
$1

52
,4

45
T

O
T

A
L

$1
,0

64
,4

30
S

ta
te

 R
P

A
 2

01
9/

20
 A

ll
oc

.
$2

94
,0

00
$1

,1
33

,1
41

 
S

ta
te

 R
P

A
 C

ar
ry

ov
er

$2
8,

31
4

 
S

ta
te

 S
B

 1
 S

us
t. 

C
om

m
un

it
ie

s 
G

ra
nt

$1
19

,5
16

S
ta

te
 S

B
 1

 A
da

pt
at

io
n 

G
ra

nt
$2

47
,8

84
P

R
O

G
R

A
M

 M
A

T
C

H
F

ed
er

al
$0

L
oc

al
 

$1
60

,5
85

15
.1

%
T

O
T

A
L

$1
,0

64
,4

30
$2

00
,9

82
17

.7
%

$1
,1

33
,1

41
S

ta
te

 
$9

03
,8

45
84

.9
%

 
 

$9
32

,1
59

82
.3

%
 

 
F

ed
er

al
$0

0.
0%

 
 

T
O

T
A

L
 W

O
R

K
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
$1

,0
64

,4
30

10
0.

0%
 

 
$1

,1
33

,1
41

 
 

M
E

N
D

O
C

IN
O

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 O
F

 G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

S
F

Y
 2

01
9/

20
20

 F
IN

A
L

 (
2N

D
 A

M
E

N
D

E
D

) 
O

V
E

R
A

L
L

 W
O

R
K

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

 O
F

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

 S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 

 

L
oc

al
 L

T
F

 2
01

9/
20

 A
ll

oc
.

S
ta

te
 P

P
M

 2
01

9/
20

 A
ll

oc
.

L
oc

al
 L

T
F

 C
ar

ry
ov

er

F
in

al
 F

Y
 2

01
9/

20
20

 O
ve

ra
ll

 W
or

k 
P

ro
gr

am
 –

 A
do

pt
ed

 6
/3

/1
9;

 A
m

en
de

d 
8/

19
/1

9 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 P

ag
e 

8



F
U

N
D

IN
G

 A
L

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 &

 E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y

C
O

U
N

T
Y

C
O

U
N

T
Y

M
T

A
C

IT
IE

S
M

C
O

G
C

O
N

S
U

L
T

/
T

O
T

A
L

N
O

.
W

O
R

K
 E

L
E

M
E

N
T

 T
IT

L
E

D
O

T
D

P
B

S
S

T
A

F
F

O
T

H
E

R
S

/
D

IR
E

C
T

 
C

O
S

T
S

1
M

C
O

G
 -

 R
eg

io
n

al
 G

ov
er

n
m

en
t 

&
 I

n
te

rg
ov

er
n

m
en

ta
l C

oo
rd

in
at

io
n

$1
11

,2
48

$2
,2

50
$1

13
,4

98
$1

12
,5

00
$1

14
,7

50
2

M
C

O
G

 -
 P

la
nn

in
g 

M
an

ag
em

en
t &

 G
en

er
al

 C
oo

rd
in

at
io

n 
(N

on
-R

P
A

)
$9

4,
99

9
$9

4,
99

9
3

M
C

O
G

 -
 C

om
m

u
n

it
y 

T
ra

n
sp

or
ta

ti
on

 P
la

n
n

in
g

$1
0,

50
0

$2
50

$1
0,

75
0

$1
7,

82
1

$7
50

$1
8,

57
1

4
M

C
O

G
 -

 S
u

st
ai

n
ab

le
 T

ra
n

sp
or

ta
ti

on
 P

la
n

n
in

g
$1

0,
50

0
$1

0,
50

0
$1

2,
66

0
$1

2,
66

0
5

M
C

O
G

 -
 S

B
 7

43
 V

M
T

 R
eg

io
na

l B
as

el
in

e 
S

tu
dy

 -
 G

ra
nt

  A
w

ar
d 

$1
5,

00
0

$1
20

,0
01

$1
35

,0
01

6
C

o.
 D

O
T

 -
 C

om
bi

ne
d 

S
pe

ci
al

 S
tu

di
es

$6
0,

00
0

$6
0,

00
0

7
M

C
O

G
 -

 P
la

n
n

in
g,

 P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g 
&

 M
on

it
or

in
g

 
$1

20
,1

34
$7

,2
50

$1
27

,3
84

$1
40

,2
03

$1
47

,4
53

8
M

C
O

G
 -

 M
en

do
. C

o.
 F

ir
e 

V
ul

ne
ra

bi
li

ty
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t &
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
P

re
pa

re
dn

es
s

-
G

ra
nt

 A
w

ar
d 

(2
-y

ea
r 

pr
oj

ec
t)

$3
5,

00
0

$2
45

,0
00

$2
80

,0
00

12
U

ki
ah

 -
 C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 A
D

A
 A

cc
es

s 
P

la
n 

U
pd

at
e 

- C
ar

ry
ov

er
$3

5,
00

0
$3

5,
00

0
13

C
o.

 D
O

T
 -

 O
rc

h
ar

d
 A

ve
. E

xt
en

si
on

 F
ea

s.
 S

tu
d

y 
 -

 G
ra

n
t 

M
at

ch
 -

 
$7

,6
08

$7
,6

08
$9

,4
36

$9
,4

36
14

M
C

O
G

 -
 T

ra
in

in
g

$1
0,

50
0

$1
1,

00
0

$2
1,

50
0

$1
6,

78
3

$2
7,

48
7

$4
4,

27
0

15
F

or
t B

ra
gg

 -
 T

ra
ns

p.
 P

la
nn

in
g 

fo
r 

M
il

l S
it

e 
R

eu
se

 &
 R

ez
on

in
g 

- C
ar

ry
ov

er
 

$1
,1

11
$4

0,
25

0
$4

1,
36

1
16

M
C

O
G

 -
 M

ul
ti

-M
od

al
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
P

la
nn

in
g

$3
1,

50
0

 
$3

1,
50

0
18

M
C

O
G

 -
 G

eo
gr

ap
hi

c 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
S

ys
te

m
 (

G
IS

) 
A

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
$5

,2
50

$6
00

$5
,8

50
20

M
C

O
G

 -
 G

ra
n

t 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

&
 A

ss
is

ta
n

ce
$2

3,
41

5
$5

00
$2

3,
91

5
$3

6,
22

6
$3

6,
72

6
P

av
em

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
ro

gr
am

 T
ri

en
ni

al
 U

pd
at

e 
- 

R
E

SE
R

V
E

 
$6

5,
56

4
$6

5,
56

4
T

O
T

A
L

$6
0,

00
0

$0
$0

$1
,1

11
$4

68
,0

46
$5

35
,2

73
$1

,0
64

,4
30

$5
17

,9
42

$5
54

,0
88

$1
,1

33
,1

41

N
ot

e:
 S

ev
er

al
 w

or
k 

el
em

en
t n

um
be

rs
 h

av
e 

be
en

 le
ft

 b
la

nk
 fo

r 
po

te
nt

ia
l c

ar
ry

ov
er

 p
ro

je
ct

s
*

R
ei

m
bu

rs
em

en
t R

at
es

 U
se

d 
F

or
 C

al
cu

la
ti

ng
 D

ay
s 

P
ro

gr
am

m
ed

 (
es

ti
m

at
e 

on
ly

)

C
ou

nt
y/

C
it

ie
s/

L
oc

al
 A

ge
nc

ie
s 

($
75

/h
r)

; 
C

on
su

lt
an

ts
 (

$1
25

/h
r)

; 
 M

C
O

G
 P

la
nn

in
g 

St
af

f (
es

t. 
@

 a
pp

ro
x 

$3
8-

$1
30

/h
r 

- 
va

ri
ou

s 
po

si
ti

on
s)

* 
M

C
O

G
 p

la
nn

in
g 

st
af

f f
un

di
ng

 le
ve

l i
s 

ba
se

d 
on

 c
on

tr
ac

te
d 

ob
li

ga
ti

on
 w

it
h 

D
B

C
 C

on
su

lt
in

g 
($

39
0,

54
2)

.  
D

B
C

's
 c

on
tr

ac
t e

xt
en

si
on

 (
ap

pr
ov

ed
 5

/6
/1

9)
 g

oe
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

9-
30

-2
0.

  I
n 

ad
di

ti
on

,

 $
11

1,
97

7.
54

 i
n 

ca
rr

yo
ve

r 
fu

nd
in

g 
($

2,
53

7.
73

 F
Y

 2
01

4/
15

; 
$2

,3
63

.4
1 

F
Y

 2
01

5/
16

; 
$1

8,
93

1.
06

 F
Y

 2
01

6/
17

; 
$2

2,
04

5.
70

 F
Y

 2
01

7/
18

; 
$6

6,
09

9.
64

 F
Y

 2
01

8/
19

) 
is

 a
va

il
ab

le
 fr

om
 

 u
nd

er
-e

xp
en

di
ng

 p
ri

or
 y

ea
rs

' f
un

di
ng

, f
or

 a
 to

ta
l a

va
il

ab
le

 o
f 

$5
02

,5
19

.5
4

).

M
E

N
D

O
C

IN
O

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 O
F

 G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

S
F

Y
 2

01
9/

20
20

 F
IN

A
L

 (
2N

D
 A

M
E

N
D

E
D

) 
O

V
E

R
A

L
L

 W
O

R
K

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M

F
in

al
 F

Y
 2

01
9/

20
20

 O
ve

ra
ll

 W
or

k 
P

ro
gr

am
  A

do
pt

ed
 6

/3
/1

9;
 A

m
en

de
d 

8/
19

/1
9;

 A
m

en
de

d 
10

/7
/1

9
   

   
   

   
P

ag
e 

9



M
E

N
D

O
C

IN
O

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 O
F

 G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

S
F

Y
 2

01
9/

20
20

 F
IN

A
L

 (
2N

D
 A

M
E

N
D

E
D

) 
O

V
E

R
A

L
L

 W
O

R
K

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

 O
F

 C
A

R
R

Y
O

V
E

R
 F

U
N

D
S

L
O

C
A

L
S

T
A

T
E

S
T

A
T

E
T

O
T

A
L

N
ot

es
N

O
.

W
O

R
K

 E
L

E
M

E
N

T
 L

T
F

 
P

P
M

R
P

A

1
M

C
O

G
 -

 R
eg

io
n

al
 G

ov
er

n
m

en
t 

&
 I

n
te

rg
ov

er
n

m
en

ta
l C

oo
rd

in
at

io
n

$1
,2

52
$1

,2
52

18
/1

9 
R

P
A

 -
 6

/3
0/

20
20

2
M

C
O

G
 -

 P
la

nn
in

g 
M

an
ag

em
en

t &
 G

en
er

al
 C

oo
rd

. (
N

on
-R

P
A

) 
$5

,2
76

$9
,0

56
$0

$1
4,

33
2

17
/1

8 
L

T
F

 -
 n

o 
ex

p.
17

/1
8 

P
P

M
 e

xp
. 6

/3
0/

20

3
M

C
O

G
 -

 C
om

m
u

n
it

y 
T

ra
n

sp
or

ta
ti

on
 P

la
n

n
in

g 
- 

C
ar

ry
ov

er
$7

,8
21

$0
$0

$7
,8

21
18

/1
9 

L
T

F
 -

 n
o 

ex
p.

4
M

C
O

G
 -

 S
u

st
ai

n
ab

le
 T

ra
n

sp
or

ta
ti

on
 P

la
n

n
in

g 
- 

C
ar

ry
ov

er
$2

,1
60

$2
,1

60
18

/1
9 

R
P

A
 -

 6
/3

0/
20

20

7
M

C
O

G
 -

 P
la

n
n

in
g 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

&
 G

en
er

al
 C

oo
rd

. (
N

on
-R

P
A

) 
$6

0,
52

0
$0

$6
0,

52
0

$2
0,

06
9

$8
0,

58
9

12
U

ki
ah

 -
 C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 A
D

A
 A

cc
es

s 
P

la
n 

U
pd

at
e 

- 
C

ar
ry

ov
er

$3
5,

00
0

$0
$3

5,
00

0
17

/1
8 

P
P

M
 -

ex
p.

 6
/3

0/
20

13
C

o.
 D

O
T

 -
 O

rc
h

ar
d

 A
ve

. E
xt

en
si

on
 F

ea
s.

 S
tu

d
y 

- 
G

ra
n

t 
M

at
ch

 -
 C

ar
ry

ov
er

$7
,6

08
$7

,6
08

18
/1

9 
L

T
F

 -
 n

o 
ex

p.

$9
,4

36
$9

,4
36

14
M

C
O

G
 -

 T
ra

in
in

g 
- 

C
ar

ry
ov

er
$2

2,
77

0
$0

$0
$2

2,
77

0
18

/1
9 

L
T

F
 -

 n
o 

ex
p.

15
F

or
t B

ra
gg

 -
 T

ra
ns

p.
 P

la
nn

in
g 

fo
r 

M
il

l S
it

e 
R

eu
se

 &
 R

ez
on

in
g 

- 
C

ar
ry

ov
er

$4
1,

36
1

$0
$4

1,
36

1
18

/1
9 

P
P

M
 -

 e
xp

. 6
/3

0/
21

20
M

C
O

G
- 

G
ra

n
t 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
&

 A
ss

is
ta

n
ce

$7
,9

78
$4

,8
33

$1
2,

81
1

18
/1

9 
L

T
F

 -
 n

o 
ex

p.
18

/1
9 

R
P

A
 -

 6
/3

0/
20

20

P
av

em
en

t M
an

ag
em

en
t P

ro
gr

am
 T

ri
en

ni
al

 U
pd

at
e 

- 
R

es
er

ve
$6

,5
08

$0
$6

,5
08

18
/1

9 
P

P
M

 -
 e

xp
 6

/3
0/

21

T
O

T
A

L
 

$1
2,

88
4

$1
52

,4
45

$1
65

,3
29

$5
3,

28
1

$2
8,

31
4

$2
34

,0
40

17
/1

8 
P

P
M

 (
$3

7,
15

4)
 -

 e
xp

. 6
/3

0/
20

   
   

18
/1

9 
P

P
M

 (
$2

3,
36

6)
 -

 e
xp

 6
/3

0/
21

 
18

/1
9 

R
P

A
 -

 6
/3

0/
20

20

F
in

al
 F

Y
 2

01
9/

20
20

 O
ve

ra
ll

 W
or

k 
P

ro
gr

am
 –

 A
do

pt
ed

 6
/3

/1
9;

 A
m

en
de

d 
8/

19
/1

9
P

ag
e





MENDOCINO COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

STAFF REPORT 

TITLE:  Award of Fiscal Auditor Engagement for MCOG and Mendocino Transit Authority 
Audits, Fiscal Years 2018/19 through 2022/23 

SUBMITTED BY:   Janet Orth, Deputy Director for Administration DATE:    9/27/2019 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
BACKGROUND: 
The Transportation Development Act (TDA) requires that both MCOG and Mendocino Transit Authority 
(MTA) are audited independently each fiscal year. To ensure compliance, MCOG has traditionally 
engaged auditors for both audits, paid from our administration budget. 

Also, MCOG’s Joint Powers Agreement states: “There shall be strict accountability by all parties and by 
MCOG of all funds. MCOG shall contract with a certified public accountant to make an annual audit.” 

MCOG has engaged the same auditor, R. J. Ricciardi, CPAs, for the past five years. Based on my prior 
research and guidance from both the Government Accounting Office (GAO) and the Government Finance 
Officials Association (GFOA), we are aware that auditor rotation is not necessarily advisable for public 
sector entities. For instance, a new perspective or other benefits can be gained, while losing some degree of 
efficiency, continuity, and institutional knowledge. If rotation is pursued, a periodic open solicitation is 
advised when an auditor engagement expires, to include the current auditor, for a five-year engagement. 

We are not necessarily seeking rotation, mainly comparing available services. Our current audit engagement 
ended with the audit of FY 2017/18. MCOG’s budget for the two audits is $25,000 of local funds, within 
the limit for micro-procurement in MCOG’s adopted Procurement Policies & Procedures Manual: 

This manual does not cover policies and procedures for micro-purchases, i.e. goods and services 
$5,000 or less with Caltrans or federal funds and $25,000 or less with local funds. These micro-
procurements will be subject to administrative decisions by the Executive Director, who may use 
this manual as guidance and choose to use any of the procedures contained herein, but will not be 
required to do so. All procurements will be made with care and thought given to the principles 
applied to expenditure of public funds. 

$25,000 is the annual budget for single-year engagements. A five-year estimate is requested, although 
typically we do not guarantee the auditor five years of engagement, signing an agreement annually. In this 
case we have selected micro-purchase along with major elements of the Informal Request for Proposals 
(RFP) method, known as “small procurement.” 

I updated our list of qualified CPAs and issued the RFP on August 23, 2019, distributed to 17 CPA 
firms by email and posted to both MCOG’s website and California Special District Association’s online 
community for advertising RFPs. Only one proposal was received by the due date of September 13, 
from our current auditor R.J. Ricciardi, Inc., Certified Public Accounts. 

Since a major criterion is familiarity with TDA, the field of qualified auditors is quite limited. We have 
found it difficult in the past to find available CPAs that meet the requirement. Similar agencies have had 
the same experience, which we heard again today at the Rural Counties Task Force meeting; some have 
received no proposals for fiscal audits. Therefore, we believe that in this case a sole source is justified. 

A review committee of MCOG and MTA staff members (myself and Mark Harvey) reviewed and scored 
the proposal for responsiveness to the RFP. One MCOG Executive Committee member also reviewed the 
proposal. The proposal was found to be more than responsive and the firm is highly qualified, with a 
combined score of 193 of a maximum 200 points. The proposed cost is $12,000 for MCOG’s audit and 
$13,000 for MTA’s, with the total estimate dropping slightly in the fourth and fifth years. 

Agenda # 10 
Consent Calendar 
MCOG Meeting 

10/7/2019 



For reference, the RFP may be found at: http://www.mendocinocog.org/news-notices 

If the Council wishes to pull this item from the Consent Calendar, staff will be prepared to answer any 
questions. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
ACTION REQUIRED: 
Award a contract to a qualified independent Certified Public Accountant or CPA firm to conduct fiscal 
audits of both MCOG and MTA for a minimum of one fiscal year, ending June 30, 2019. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
ALTERNATIVES: 
1) Reissue the Request for Proposals. – not recommended, in the interests of time and audit due dates

2) Conduct a “competitive” formal Request for Proposals for a five-year engagement of $125,000.
– not recommended, as it would not be a productive use of staff time and resources

______________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Award the fiscal audit engagement contract for the year ended June 30, 2019 to R.J. Ricciardi, Inc. and 
authorize MCOG’s Executive Director to execute annual agreements for up to a total of five years. 



MENDOCINO COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

STAFF REPORT 

TITLE: Appointments to Transit Productivity Committee - Senior Center Representatives 

SUBMITTED BY:   Janet Orth, Deputy Director / CFO   DATE:    9/30/2019 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
BACKGROUND: 

MCOG’s bylaws state that one of the voting members of the Transit Productivity Committee 
shall be “one senior centers representative to be selected by those senior centers under the 
Council’s jurisdiction and then formally appointed by the Council.” The others are two board 
members appointed by the Council and two members appointed by Mendocino Transit Authority 
from its board of directors, for a total of five voting members. 

While board members are appointed annually, there is no provision for any particular term of 
service for the seniors representative. The past three representatives each have served for seven 
or eight years, until resigning for various reasons. We thank all of the past members for their 
dedication. 

On September 17, 2019, MCOG hosted a Senior Centers Transportation Program Workshop. 
This was an opportunity to seek nominations to replace Charles Bush, who recently retired as 
Executive Director of Redwood Coast Seniors. Since then, Diana Clarke has been serving on the 
TPC as the appointed Alternate. 

A motion and second were received to nominate Diana Clarke, Executive Director of Ukiah 
Senior Center, as the TPC representative. Another motion and second were received to nominate 
Richard Baker, Director of Willits Harrah Senior Center, as the alternate. With four of five senior 
centers in attendance, all were in favor. No other nominations have been received. 

On behalf of MCOG, staff will send a letter of appreciation to Charles Bush for his past service 
on the TPC. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
ACTION REQUIRED: 

Appoint a qualified representative of the five senior centers, and an alternate, to serve on the TPC. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
ALTERNATIVES: 

None are identified. If an appointment is not made, the senior centers will go without voting 
representation in matters of MCOG’s transit allocations, unmet transit needs recommendations, 
transit performance standards and annual performance reviews. Such representation is not 
required by law, but is allowed by the Transportation Development Act and is an important part 
of the public participation, planning and overview functions mandated by TDA. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDATION: 

Appoint Diana Clarke to the Transit Productivity Committee and Richard Baker as Alternate. 

Agenda # 11 
Consent Calendar 
MCOG Meeting 

10/7/2019 





Agenda #14c  
Reports 

MCOG Meeting 
10/07/2019 MENDOCINO COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

STAFF REPORT 

TITLE: Summary of Meetings DATE PREPARED: 9/19/2019 

SUBMITTED BY:   Monica Galliani, Administrative Assistant 

BACKGROUND: 

Since our last regular MCOG meeting packet, MCOG Administration and Planning staff has attended 
(or will have attended) the following 19 meetings on behalf of MCOG: 

 Date Meeting/Event Location Staff 
8/20/2019 Gualala Project Manager Meeting Ukiah  Barrett 
8/20/2019 Dow & DBC Coordination Meeting Ukiah All Staff  
8/21/2019 MCOG Technical Advisory Meeting Ukiah Barrett, Ellard, 

Sookne 
8/21/2019 Caltrans Coordination Meeting 

(Caltrans) 
Ukiah Barrett

8/28/2019 Covelo PG&E Meeting Covelo Barrett & Sookne 
8/28/2019 Gualala Streetscape Meeting Gualala Barrett 
8/28/2019 Mendocino Transit Authority Meeting  Teleconference 

(Willits) 
Ellard 

9/4/2019 Gualala Working Group Gualala Barrett
9/6/2019 SB 743/VMT Grant Kickoff Meeting Ukiah Barrett & Sookne 
9/13/2019 MTA Ad Hoc Committee Fort Bragg Barrett, Orth 
9/17/2019 MCOG Senior Centers Transportation 

Workshop 
Ukiah Barrett, Orth,

Galliani 
9/20/2019 Broadband Meeting Teleconference Barrett
9/23/2019 Covelo Meeting Covelo Sookne
9/23/2019 Gualala PDT Meeting Teleconference Barrett
9/24/2019 CDAC Meeting Sacramento Barrett
9/24/2019 Adaptation/Fire Vulnerability

Consultant Selection Committee 
Ukiah Ellard & Sookne 

9/25/2019 Covelo PDT Covelo Sookne
9/25/2019 Gualala Working Group Gualala Barrett
9/27/2019 Rural Counties Task Force Ukiah Barrett, Orth, 

Ellard & Davey-
Bates 

10/01/2019 Gualala Public Meeting Gualala Barrett 
10/01/2019 Dow & DBC Coordination Meeting  Ukiah All Staff 
10/4/2019 Orchard Avenue PDT Teleconference Ellard

I will provide information to Board members regarding the outcome of any of these meetings as 
requested. 

ACTION REQUIRED: None. 

ALTERNATIVES:   None identified. 

RECOMMENDATION:  None. This is for information only.  


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



